
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 

 
 

 

STATE  OF  NEVADA  

FUNERAL  AND  CEMETERY  SERVICES  BOARD  
3740  Lakeside  Drive,  Suite  201,  Reno,  Nevada   89509  

Phone  (775)  825‐5535   
Email:   nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov   *   Website:   http://funeral.nv.gov/  

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Wednesday, May 14, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. 

Video Conference and Teleconference 

Via Zoom Video Conference Via Teleconference: 

Zoom Meetings 
at Zoom Meeting Link 

Meeting ID: 253 977 5871 
Passcode: 668556 

1-669-900-6833 
Meeting ID: 253 977 5871 

Passcode: 668556 

Physical Location 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada 

Please Note:  The Board may: 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons 
appearing before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for 
consideration by the public body; and 3) pull or remove items from the agenda at any time.  The Board 
may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional competence 
or physical or mental health of a person. (NRS 241.030) 

Public comments are welcomed by the Board. At the discretion of the Chair, Public comment may be 
limited to three (3) minutes per person. A public comment time will be available before any action items 
are heard by the public body and then once again prior to adjournment of the meeting. The Chair may 
allow additional time to be given to a speaker as time allows and at Chair’s sole discretion. Once all items 
on the agenda are completed the meeting will adjourn.  Prior to the commencement and conclusions of a 
contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual, the 
board may refuse to consider public comment. 

At the time for public comments, if you wish to provide public comment, you will be asked to raise your 
hand to be recognized by the host. If you are attending the meeting via video, to raise your hand using 
the meeting controls, click on Reactions and then click Raise Hand. To lower your hand, click Lower 
Hand. When called on by the host, you will be prompted to unmute yourself and state your name.   

If you are participating by telephone, dial *9 on your phone to raise or lower your hand.   

NOTE: Public comment may be provided prior to the meeting via email to nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table. 

1. Call to order, roll call, establish quorum. 

2. Public comment 

Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself 
has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken. NRS 
241.020 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting February 12, 2025 
Page 1 of 4 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
http://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

3. Consent Agenda (For Possible Action) 

The consent agenda items contain matters of routine acceptance.  The Board members may 
approve the consent agenda as a whole or individually at their discretion. 

A. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding review and approval of 
minutes of the Board meetings on February 12, 2025. (For possible action.) 

B. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding previously issued 
temporary establishment permit, direct cremation facility permit, crematory, and/or 
cemetery license applications and request for approval of new managing funeral 
directors. (For possible action.) 

1) Establishment Permit for Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary, EST146, located at 925 Las 
Vegas Blvd North in Las Vegas.  Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 
effective March 21, 2025. 

2) Establishment Permit for Bunker’s Memory Gardens, EST147, located at 7251 W. 
Lone Mountain Road in Las Vegas.  Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 
effective March 21, 2025. 

3) Crematory License for Bunker’s Memory Gardens, CRE122, located at 7251 W. Lone 
Mountain Road in Las Vegas.  Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 
effective March 21, 2025. 

4) Cemetery Certificate of Authority for Bunker’s Eden Vale Memorial Park, CEM75, 
located at 1216 Las Vegas Blvd North, in Las Vegas.  Temporary approval pursuant 
to NAC 642.080 effective March 21, 2025. 

5) Cemetery Certificate of Authority for Bunker’s Memory Gardens, CEM76, located at 
7251 W. Lone Mountain Road in Las Vegas. Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 
642.080 effective March 21, 2025. 

6) Cemetery Certificate of Authority for Woodlawn Cemetery, CEM74, located at 1500 
Las Vegas Blvd North in Las Vegas.  Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 
effective March 21, 2025. 

7) Managing Funeral Director Request for Mountain View Mortuary, EST3, proposed 
managing funeral director Kuvira Cox, FD755, effective February 4, 2025. Temporary 
approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted February 4, 2025. 

8) Managing Funeral Director Request for La Paloma, EST79, proposed managing 
funeral director Richard Hollingsworth, FD1034, effective March 1, 2025. Temporary 
approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted February 14, 2025. 

9) Managing Funeral Director Request for La Paloma, EST131, proposed managing 
funeral director Richard Hollingsworth, FD1034, effective March 1, 2025. Temporary 
approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted February 14, 2025. 

10) Managing Funeral Director Request for Palm Southwest, EST105, proposed 
managing funeral director Jessica Wain, FD1036, effective March 15, 2025. 
Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted March 13, 2025. 

11) Managing Funeral Director Request for Simple, DC90L, proposed managing funeral 
director Dawn Hollingsworth, FD1039, effective April 3, 2025. Temporary approval 
pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted April 3, 2025. 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting May 14, 2025 
Page 2 of 4 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12) Managing Funeral Director Request for Simple, DC103L, proposed managing funeral 
director Dawn Hollingsworth, FD1039, effective April 3, 2025. Temporary approval 
pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted April 3, 2025. 

13) Managing Funeral Director Request for Sonoma Funeral Home, EST116, proposed 
managing funeral director Kailynn Yetter, FD975, effective April 2, 2025. Temporary 
approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted April 29, 2025. Note retroactive approval. 

4. Public Hearing on Proposed Regulations.  The Board will receive and hear all public 
comments regarding LCB File Number R142-23 for changes to Nevada Administrative 
Code Chapter 451. Public comments may be made in person or submitted in writing.  
(For possible action.) 

5. Consideration of public comment and possible adoption of LCB File Number R142-23.  
The Board will consider all public comments received regarding the proposed regulatory 
changes under agenda item 5.  This agenda item may involve the Board proposing 
changes to the regulation after consideration of all public comments and determining 
whether to adopt the regulation.  (For possible action.) 

6. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding the funeral arranger 
application for Casey McGary. (For possible action.)   

7. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding a consent decree in 
Complaint File FB24-05, King David, a Funeral Establishment, and Jay Poster, a Funeral 
Director.  (For possible action.) 

8. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding a hearing in the Matter of 
Dominique Poston, a Funeral Arranger, Case No. FB23-28, a Complaint for Disciplinary 
Action and Notice of Hearing having been filed. This agenda item may include review
and consideration of any motions and may include review and consideration of a 
settlement agreement or consent decree if one is presented. (For possible action.) 

9. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding a hearing in the Matter of 
Andre’s Family Mortuary, a Funeral Establishment, and Candy Grey, a Funeral Director, 
Case No. FB23-25, a Complaint for Disciplinary Action and Notice of Hearing having
been filed. This agenda item may include review and consideration of any motions and
may include review and consideration of a settlement agreement or consent decree if 
one is presented. (For possible action.) 

10. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding a hearing in the Matter of 
McDermott’s Funeral and Cremation Service, a Funeral Establishment, and Christopher 
M. Grant, a Funeral Director, Case No. FB24-06, a Complaint for Disciplinary Action and 
Notice of Hearing.  This agenda item may include review and consideration of any 
motions and may include review and consideration of a settlement agreement or 
consent decree if one is presented. (For possible action.) 

11. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding the FY26 budget. (For 
possible action.) 

12. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding a cost-of-living adjustment 
(COLA) for FY26. (For possible action). 

13. Financial Reports (For possible action.) 

14. Report from Executive Director, Stephanie Bryant McGee (For information only.) 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting May 14, 2025 
Page 3 of 4 



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 

15. Discussion regarding future agenda items and future meeting dates (For possible 
action.) 

Wednesday, August 13, 2025, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, November 12, 2025, at 9 a.m. (In Person-Las Vegas) 
Wednesday, February 11, 2026, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, May 13, 2026, at 9 a.m. 

16. Public comment 

Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself 
has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken.  (NRS 
241.020) 

17. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

Anyone desiring additional information, including meeting materials, may contact Stephanie Bryant 
McGee at 775-825-5535.  Meeting materials are also available for download from the Board website at 
http://funeral.nv.gov or can be picked up at the following location: 3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, 
NV 89509.  NOTE: If picking up materials, please call the office to schedule a time for pick-up. 

The Board is pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled 
and wish to attend the meeting.  If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify 
Stephanie Bryant McGee at 775-825-5535, no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  Requests for 
special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed. 

This agenda has been sent to all members of the Board and other interested people who have requested 
an agenda from the Board.  People who wish to continue to receive an agenda and notice of meetings 
must request so in writing every six months. 

THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PROPERLY NOTICED AND POSTED 
IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS: 

Nevada Funeral & Cemetery 
Services Board Office 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 
201 

Reno, NV 89509 

Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
Website 

https://funeral.nv.gov/Board/Meetings/Meetin 
gs/ 

Nevada Public Notice 
Website 

https://notice.nv.gov/ 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting May 14, 2025 
Page 4 of 4 

http://funeral.nv.gov


 
 

  
 

 
       

  
   

   

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

    

  
    

 
   
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

 
  

 
    

 
   

 
  

   
 

   
    

 
 

   
   

  
 

 
  

   
 

 
   

   
  

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada  89509 
Phone (775) 825-5535 

Email: nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov * Website: http://funeral.nv.gov/ 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Wednesday, February 12, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. 

1. Call to order, roll call, establish quorum. 

Laura Sussman called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, February 12, 2025. The meeting 
was held in Reno and virtually via Zoom. Roll call was taken and confirmed that a quorum was present. 

Board Members Present Board Staff Present 
Laura Sussman, Secretary Stephanie Bryant McGee, Executive Director 
Kim Kandaras, Treasurer 
Dr. Donald Edward Chaney 
Celena DiLullo Board Counsel Present 
Dr. Raymond Giddens Matt Feeley, Deputy Attorney General 
Jeff Long 

Board Members Absent 
Randy Sharp, Chairman 

2. Public comment 

Acting Chairperson Sussman opened the floor for public comment.  There were no comments. 

3. Consent Agenda (For Possible Action) 

The consent agenda items contain matters of routine acceptance.  The Board members may approve the 
consent agenda as a whole or individually at their discretion. 

A. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding review and approval of 
minutes of the Board meetings on November 20, 2024, and December 10, 2024. (For 
possible action.) 

B. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding previously issued 
temporary establishment permit, direct cremation facility permit, crematory license 
applications and request for approval of new managing funeral directors. (For possible 
action.) 

1) Establishment License for Green Farewells, EST145, located at 3065 N. Rancho 
Drive, Ste. 176, in Las Vegas.  Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 
effective January 6, 2025. 

2) Managing Funeral Director Request for Mountain View Mortuary, EST3, proposed 
managing funeral director Stephanie Shapiro, FD981, effective December 2, 2024. 
Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted December 3, 2024. 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting February 12, 2025 
Page 1 of 5 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
http://funeral.nv.gov/


 
 

  
   
   

 

    

   
 

 
    

  
  

 
   

 
  

 
 

 
     

 
 

   
     

 
 

    
    

    
    

  
   

 
      
   
    
       
    
      

 
    

    
   

  
     

    
 

 
  

   
    

 
 

    
    

 
 

    
   

  

3) Managing Funeral Director Request for After NV1, LLC, dba After.com Cremation, 
DC106L, proposed managing funeral director Paula Rogers, FD1023, effective 
January 1, 2025. Temporary approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted December 
17, 2024. 

4) Managing Funeral Director Request for Palm Downtown, EST17, proposed managing 
funeral director Matthew Phillips, FD890, effective February 1, 2025. Temporary 
approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted January 24, 2025. 

5) Managing Funeral Director Request for Palm Eastern, EST27, proposed managing 
funeral director Michael Roberts, FD968, effective February 1, 2025. Temporary 
approval pursuant to NAC 642.080 granted January 24, 2025. 

Celena DiLullo recused herself from items 3.B.4. and 3.B.5. 

Action: Dr. D. Edward Chaney made a motion, seconded by Kim Kandaras, to approve all items on the 
consent agenda. The motion passed unanimously. 

4. Presentation regarding preneed funeral and cemetery licensing by the Department of 
Business & Industry’s Division of Insurance, Insurance Commissioner Scott Kipper. (For 
information only.) 

Insurance Commissioner Kipper provided an overview of the Insurance Division’s position regarding 
funeral and cemetery preneed licensing. Commissioner Kipper stated that he felt that the Division owed 
the Board and the industry an apology as the Division has, over the last couple of years, distributed 
different information about who needs a cemetery seller’s permit. Commissioner Kipper stated that the 
Division will issue bulletins to help clear this up. With respect to licensing, Commissioner Kipper stated 
the following: 

• Only a licensed cemetery authority can hold a cemetery seller’s permit. 
• Only a funeral home can hold a funeral seller’s certificate of authority. 
• Anyone selling on behalf of either must be employed by a licensed seller to obtain a license. 
• The individual agent cannot represent both a funeral home and a cemetery. 
• Preneed contracts must be separate and distinct from life insurance contracts. 
• Sellers must submit preneed contract forms to Division for approval. 

Celena DiLullo asked if a standalone funeral home can sell urns without a cemetery seller’s license, as 
information has been conflicting. Commissioner Kipper responded that the guidance will be clear on that 
question and that there should not be any question as to whether an entity can sell urns to people. 
Commissioner stated that the Division would provide absolute clarity as to the answer to that question. 
Ms. DiLullo asked for clarification that a funeral home could sell urns without the cemetery seller’s license. 
Commissioner Kipper confirmed, though he did not have specifics at this time but that information should 
be coming out very soon. 

5. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding the cemetery certificate of 
authority for The Gardens Funeral Home, LLC, CEM73, located at 2949 Austin Highway in 
Fallon. Temporary approval granted December 31, 2024. (For possible action.) 

Stephanie McGee stated that the Board received a cemetery application from The Gardens Funeral 
Home, LLC, in April of 2024. Acquisition of an existing cemetery, formerly owned by The Gardens LLC 
and now by The Gardens Funeral Home LLC. Brennan Jackson is the sole principal for the Gardens 
Funeral Home LLC. 

Ms. McGee stated that the statutes, specifically, NRS 452.590, provide for approval of an acquisition of 
an existing cemetery and that the Board may approve the certificate if the Board is satisfied that the 
proposed owners are qualified by character, experience, as well as business and financial reputability and 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting February 12, 2025 
Page 2 of 5 

https://After.com


 
 

  
   
   

 

  
    

     
 

  
      
     

  
 

  
    

 
   

   
  

   
    

   
 

    
     

   
    

 
    

     
 

    
 

   
 

    
  

 
   

    
 

  
     

  
     

   
 

     
 

   
   

 
  

  
    

    
  

 
  

  
 

responsibility. Ms. McGee explained that the statute prohibits the Board from approving the acquisition of 
a cemetery without the prior approval of the Division of Insurance and stated that the Division of 
Insurance approved this application as of December 2024. 

Acting Chairperson Sussman recognized Ted Williams as the person proposed to handle the day-to-day 
activities of the cemetery. Mr. Williams thanked the Board for the temporary approval. Kim Kandaras 
stated that Mr. Williams worked for Walton’s for many years and that she can vouch for his integrity and 
commitment. 

Action: Kim Kandaras made a motion, seconded by Dr. Raymond Giddens, to approve the cemetery 
application, as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 

6. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding continuing education
approval for The International Conference of Funeral Service Examining Boards, 121st 

Annual Meeting and Board/Administrator Training, February 27-29, 2025. Requesting 
approval for six (6) hours for Board Member Training, two and a half (2.5) hours for
Funeral Services Administrators Forum, ten hours and fifteen minutes (10.25) CEU hours 
for the remainder of the sessions. (For possible action.) 

Stephanie McGee stated that on December 20, 2024, the office received an application for approval of 
continuing education units for each individual education session to be presented at The Conference’s 
annual meeting in February. Ms. McGee stated that the courses and speaker bios submitted meet the 
technical guidelines for approval by the Board pursuant to NAC 642.015. 

Acting Chairperson Sussman remarked that her previous experience at this conference was beneficial 
both as a Board member and as a funeral director. Dr. Chaney commented that he agreed with 
Chairperson Sussman and stated that attending the conference was beneficial and insightful. Kim 
Kandaras agreed that she attended previous events and that the training was wonderful. 

Ms. McGee reported that she and Board Member Jeff Long would be attending the conference this year. 

Action: Dr. Raymond Giddens made a motion, seconded by Dr. Chaney, to approve the ten and a half 
hours of training. The motion passes unanimously. 

7. Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding the funeral arranger 
application for Mia Guajardo. (For possible action.) 

Stephanie McGee explained that the Board’s office received the application October 2, 2024, from Mia 
Guajardo and that, on that application, Ms. Guajardo disclosed a misdemeanor domestic violence charge. 
As part of that application, Ms. Guajardo checked the box indicating that she had no other crimes to 
disclose. The criminal history background report indicated that Ms. Guajardo was convicted of two other 
misdemeanors, one in 2018 and one in 2020. 

Ms. McGee explained that the application was being presented to the Board for two reasons: 1) the 
crimes occurred within the most recent seven years, and 2) the applicant failed to disclose the crimes with 
her application. Pursuant to the Board’s Operating Procedures, staff may only approve applications with 
criminal history older than seven years. 

In addition, Ms. McGee stated that the Nevada Administrative Code provides that, in determining good 
moral character, two items to consider are: 1) whether crimes are disclosed, and 2) whether, within the 
previous seven years, the applicant has been convicted of a misdemeanor that could be reasonably 
construed as having a connection to the person’s license. The Board may consider any aggravating or 
mitigating circumstances. 

Acting Chairperson Sussman asked if this was the first time Ms. Guajardo has applied. Ms. McGee 
confirmed that it was. 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting February 12, 2025 
Page 3 of 5 



 
 

  
   
   

 

       
    

   
   

  
 

  
   

  
 

   
     

 
 

  
     

    
 

  
 

  
  

 
   

 
   

  
   

  
    

 
  

  
 

 
    

 
 

    
 

    
  

     
 

  
 

   
  

  
   

 
     

   
  

    
    

Celena DiLullo stated that Ms. Guajardo has worked with her for the last eight or nine years as 
administrative assistant, now an office manager. Ms. DiLullo stated that she is very comfortable with Ms. 
Guajardo and has encouraged her to seek this license. Dr. Chaney asked if Ms. DiLullo would consider 
herself a mentor to Ms. Guajardo. Ms. DiLullo confirmed that she would. Dr. Chaney stated that mentors 
are needed more in the industry to guide people. 

Ms. Guajardo stated that regarding her domestic violence charge, that was a very dark time in her life and 
her father had recently passed. She stated that she knew there was no excuse, and that she regretted 
her actions. 

Action Chairperson asked Ms. Guajardo if she knew that she was required to include her entire history on 
the form. Ms. Guajardo said she was not aware of the other charges on her background. She stated that 
she had thought the obstruction of an officer charge was in 2017, not 2018. 

Kim Kandaras thanked Ms. Guajardo for the explanation and stated that Ms. DiLullo vouching for Ms. 
Guajardo is impactful. Ms. Kandaras stated that she thought that it was important to follow established 
protocol and to allow Ms. Guajardo to reapply with truthful information. 

Celena DiLullo recused herself from this agenda item. 

Action: Kim Kandaras made a motion, seconded by Dr. Raymond Giddens, to deny the license based on 
the current application and to allow Ms. Guajardo to reapply immediately with truthful information. The 
motion passed unanimously. 

8. Financial Reports (For information only.) 

Ms. McGee presented the financial statements, including the balance sheet, budget vs actual report of 
revenue and expenditures, and the report of regulatory fees collected to date. She highlighted that the 
attorney fees line item reflects the Attorney General’s Office legal fees only through September 2024, the 
last invoice received.  She explained that, due to turnover in that office, the billing is behind and that she 
expects that invoice to be significant. 

Ms. McGee stated that a review of regulatory fees has been incorporated into inspection process and that 
the inspector will ask for a list of signed contracts for certain months within the previous 12 months to 
reconcile the regulatory fees collected. 

Ms. McGee thanked Kim Kandaras for her continued work reviewing the monthly revenue and 
expenditures.  

9. Report from Executive Director, Stephanie Bryant McGee (For information only.) 

Ms. McGee reported that Beverly’s Memorial Chapel, a funeral establishment, closed in December. 

Ms. McGee noted that all Board member terms, apart from Dr. Chaney’s, are expiring in September 2025, 
and that Governor Lombardo’s office is encouraging interested persons to submit applications for 
reappointment at this time. 

Ms. McGee noted that the legislative session has begun and that she is monitoring legislation. Ms. 
McGee stated that Senate Bill 78 is the bill providing for funding and more details regarding the 
consolidation of boards within the Department of Business and Industry. She stated that the bill is in 
skeleton form and that the bill does not contemplate combining the Board with any other board. 

Ms. McGee stated that the Office of Vital Records recently sent out an email regarding recording fetal 
deaths and inconsistent reporting and provided a recap of the requirements set forth in the email, as 
follows: 

• Records for fetal deaths or still births, as defined at Nevada Revised Statutes 440.070, must be 
initiated within 24 hours but do not need to be completed in 24 hours. 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting February 12, 2025 
Page 4 of 5 



 
 

  
   
   

 

    
  

   
  

     
    

  
    

 
  

 
 

  
  
  

  
 

  
 

   
     

 
  

   

  
    

   
     

  
  

 
  

   
  

    
  

 
  

 
  

 
    

 
 

• These death records are not entirely electronic, and funeral directors will need to communicate 
with doctors to complete the paperwork. 

• Hospitals and funeral homes are equally responsible for reporting stillbirths of 20 weeks or 
greater. 

• Hospitals should be providing written documentation of gestational age to the funeral home. 
• Funeral homes must have documented proof of gestational age from the hospital before 

cremating a fetus. 
• A burial permit is required. 

10. Discussion regarding future agenda items and future meeting dates (For possible 
action.) 

Wednesday, May 14, 2025, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, August 13, 2025, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, November 12, 2025, at 9 a.m. 
Wednesday, February 11, 2026, at 9 a.m. 

No Board members noted an issue with these dates and times. 

Ms. Kandaras asked if there would be an in-person meeting this year. Ms. McGee stated there would be, 
but it will be in November in Las Vegas. It will be included in the proposed budget at the May meeting. 

11. Public comment 
Chairperson Sussman opened the floor for public comment. 

Dr. Giddens announced that James Jones has passed and that the Funeral Directors and Morticians 
Association of Nevada is assisting Palm Funeral Home and Thomas and Jones Funeral Home with 
services scheduled for 10:00 a.m. on February 14 at New Jerusalem Worship Center. Mr. Jones was a 
mentor to many in the funeral industry. Dr. Chaney acknowledged that James Jones was a great 
practitioner of the profession and that he had met with Mr. Jones many times. He wanted to acknowledge 
that he was a great mentor. 

Judith Gonzales asked if there were any updates about the College of Southern (CSN) Nevada Funeral 
Service Program. Ms. McGee noted that representatives of CSN presented at the last meeting and that 
the minutes approved today will be posted on the website. Ms. McGee stated that CSN will be accepting 
applications to the program for the fall 2025 semester and, while they are not accredited today, they are 
hoping to be accredited before the initial class graduates. 

There were no additional public comments. 

12. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 

Action: Dr. Raymond Giddens made a motion, seconded by Kim Kandaras, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Agenda and Notice of Public Meeting February 12, 2025 
Page 5 of 5 













	
��

	   

�





















LICENSE #: G73-01678 DATE ISSUED: 4/6/2025 

TYPE: Q05-FUNERAL HOME ADMINISTRATOR EXPIRATION DATE: 10/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 925 N LAS VEGAS BLVD 

ISSUED TO: BUNKER'S EDEN VALE MORTUARY 
3103 SACKETT ST 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 





FFN #202503241004133 filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM by MUNGUIAA - TR #2478506
Expires : 03/24/ 2030 - Page 1 of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN I4ARIE GOYA, COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Cenificate of Assumed or Fictitious Name
Ofice of the Clark County Clerk
LynnMarieGoya FilingType: ElNew f]Renewal

This form is used by a registered bwiness entity to file an assumed or fictitious name under which business will be
conducted in Clark County, Nevada- A registered business entity is organized pursuqnt to the laws of Nevada that
has filed formation documents with the ffice of the Secretary of State ; these entities are required to file an Annual
List of fficers or its equivalent. For purposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-quolified
corporations, limited-liability companies,limiled partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerships.

Business Type: (select only one)

ff Corporation Sllimited-Liability Company Elimited Parfirership ffif,imitea-fiability parrnership

Efi-it"a-liability Limited Partnership flProfessional Corporarion 
-EProfessional Association

Assumed or Fictitious Name: Bunke/s Eden Vale Mortuary

Registered Business Entity: LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Eracrly as it is regisl*ed (or intends to be rcgisared) with the Naada Secretory olState

Business Contact: g1 3) 529-5770 drew@legacyfu n eralgrou p.com
Phone Number Email Addras

MailingAddress: 3103 SACKETT ST
StreetAddrs

HOUSTON TX 77098

Unit/Apt/SuitdBldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

State/Provhce

MICHAEL L SOPER

Authorized Signer Signature :

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES UNDER
PENALTY OF PERruRY UNDERTIIE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEVADA TI{AT TIIE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FII/E (5) YEARS
FROM THEFILINGDATE.

with signaWe authorilylor the regbtered budness entity

n*e2312112025



FFN #20250324LO04L32
Expires z 03/24/2O3O

filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM

Page 1 of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN
by MUNGUIAA
}4ARIE GOYA,

- TR *2478506
COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certificate of Assumed or Fictitious Name
Ofice of the Clark County Clerk
Lynn Marie Goya FilingType: [$New fiRenewal

This form is used by a registered bwiness entity to file an assumed or fictitious naue under which business will be
conducted in Clark County, Nevada. A registered business entity is organized pursuant lo the laws of Nevada that
hasfiledformation docaments with the ffice of the Secretary of State; these entities are required tofile an Annual
List of Oficers or its equivalent. For purposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-qualiJied
corporations, limited-liability companies, limited partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited porlnerships.

Buslness Type: (select only one)

SCorporation Elimited-LiabilityCompany fiI.imitedPartnership
Eti-it"a-f,iabiDtyLimitedPartaership EProfessionalCorporation

fl Limitea-tialility Partnership

E Professional Association

Assumed or Fictitious Name: Bunkers Eden Vale Mortuary

Registered Business Entity: LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Exoctly as it is regltrered (or inunb a be registered) with rte Nevada Secretary of Stote

Business contact: 913') 529-5770 d rew@legacyfu n eralg rou p. co m
EinailA&ru

Mailing Address: 3103 SACKETT ST
Street Address

HOUSTON TX 77098

Unit/Apt/Suite/Bldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

Slate/Province

MICHAEL L SOPER

Authorized Signer Signature:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES UNDER
PENALTY OF PERIURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATB OF
NEVADA TILAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AI.ID CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS
FROM TIfi FILING DATE.



FFN #202503241004138 filed
Expires: O3/24/2O3O - Page

03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM
1 of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN

- TR *247a506
COUNTY CLERK

by MUNGUIAA
IITARIE GOYA,

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certificale of Assumed or Fic.titiaus Name
Ofice of the Clark County Clerk
Lynn Marie Goya FilingType: SNew fiRenewal

This form is used by a registered business entity tofile an assumed orfctitious name under which business will be
conducted in Clark County, Nevada. A registered business entity is organized pursuant to the laws of Nevada that
has filed formation docamenls with the ffice of the Secretary of State; these entities are required to file an Annual
List of fficers or its equivalent. For purposes of thts form, these include domestic and foreign-qualified
corporations, limitedJiebility companies, limited partnerships, limiled-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerships.

Business Type: (select only one)

fiCorporation fillimited-Liability Corrpany fil,imitea Partnership flrimlteO-Liabiliry Partnership

Efi-it"a-tiability Limitod Partnership EProfessional Corporation EProfessional Association

Assuned or Fictitious Name: Bunker's Mortuary

RegisteredBusinessEntity: LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Exoctty as it is registered (or htends to be registered) with ,he Ndada Secretary ofstate

Business Contact: F13) 529-Q770 d rew@legacyfu n eral g rou p. co m

Mailing Address:

Phone I,Iumber

3103 SACKETT ST

Enail lddress

Streel Address

HOUSTON TX 77098

Unit/Apt/SuitdBldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

Authorized Signer Signature:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES UNDER
PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER TI{E LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEVADA THAT TTIE FOREGOh{G IS TRUE AND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CI"ARK COUNTY, NEVADA, IS VATID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS
FROM TIIE FILING DATE.

Stutennvince

MICHAEL L SOPER
Full Nane (first niddle last) of the penon *irt signoaue authoriEfor lhe registded busineJs enlity

natez312112025

Ofueuse only-v7.27.23



FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
AUTHORITY 

In accordance with NRS 642.067, NRS 642.365 and NRS 642.435, the Nevada Board of Funeral and 
Cemetery services has authority to inspect any premises where funeral directing is conducted or
embalming practiced, and is required to make unannounced inspections of each establishment issued
a permit by the Board. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
Name under which the location conducts business: Bunkers Eden Vale Mortuary 
Permit #: NEW 
Physical address: 925 Las Vegas Boulevard North, Las

Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Mailing address: 3103 Sackett Street, Houston, Texas 

77098 
Phone number: 702-385-1441 
Owner of location: Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC 
Type of ownership: LLC 
Name of funeral director approved to manage this Larry Davis FD984 
establishment: 
Does the establishment have an on-site crematory? No 
Where are bodies from location cremated? Crematory at Bunker’s Memory Gardens

Mortuary
Photo of Outside of Building: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 1 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Photo of Signage 

Photo of Lobby 

LICENSES 
Establishment permit with name of owner displayed Yes 
conspicuously? (NRS 642.465)
Funeral directors’ licenses displayed conspicuously? Yes 
(NRS 642.460)
Funeral arrangers' licenses displayed conspicuously? Yes 
(NRS 642.460)
Are all individuals meeting with families to make Yes 
arrangements properly licensed? (NRS 642.361)
Does the location employ or contract with a licensed Yes 
embalmer? (NAC 642.161)
Embalmers’ licenses displayed conspicuously? (NRS Yes 
642.110)
Apprentice embalmer certificates of registration N/A
displayed conspicuously? (NRS 642.280)
Does the establishment sell, solicit, negotiate or is party Yes 
to any pre-need contract or provide pre-need services? 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 2 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Is a valid pre-need license available? (NRS 689) Yes 
Notes All licenses are displayed. Copies of pre-

need licenses are on this iPad. DOI shows 
that Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada
LLC and Adam Zalesny are active and
current with DOI for pre-need. 

Photo of Displayed Licenses 

New Photo 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 3 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
New Photo 

New Photo 

LIST NAMES AND LICENSE NUMBERS OF ALL LICENSEES: 

Name Kaylin Nixon 
License Number FA95 

Name Larry Davis 
License Number FD984 

Name 
License Number 

Jaye MacPherson 
FD202 

Name 
License Number 

Traci Ortlieb 
FD992 

Name 
License Number 

Sean Winn 
EMB907 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 4 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


PREPARATION ROOM 

FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist

Does the establishment have a preparation room? (NRS Yes 
642.016)
Is there proper signage and locking doors to prevent Yes 
unauthorized persons from entering preparation room?
(NRS 642.560)
Is the floor sanitary? (NRS 642.016) Yes 
Is there necessary drainage? (NRS 642.016) Yes 
Is there proper ventilation in working order? (NRS Yes 
642.016)
Are fumes and odors prevented from entering other Yes 
parts of the building? (NRS 642.016)
Does the location properly store and dispose of Yes 
hazardous waste? (NRS 444.490)
Is this preparation room utilized by the establishment? Yes 
Is embalming performed at this location? Yes 
IF the preparation room is utilized for embalming, is it Yes 
equipped with all instruments and supplies necessary
for the preparation and embalming of human bodies?
(NRS 642.016) Check items that are present:
Injection Tubes
Aneurysm Needle
Scalpel
Hypodermic syringe
Embalming Machine
Restorative Wax 
Covered Waste Can 
Disinfectant 
Large Trocar
Scissors 
Aspirator
Hardening Compound
Shaving Material
First Aid Kid 
Small Trocar 
Hemostats 
Hypodermic Needles
Headrest 
Sheets/Body Bags
Eye Wash Station
Suture Thread 
Suture Needles 
Forceps
Cosmetics 
Powder Brush 
Application Brush
Soap 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 5 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Notes 
Preparation Room Signage 

Preparation Room Locking Doors: 

Preparation Room Drainage: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 6 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Preparation Room Ventilation: 

Preparation Room Overview Photo: 

Hazardous Waste Container Photo: 

HUMAN REMAINS 
Are human remains stored at this location? Yes 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 7 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
List all areas of the establishment where human remains Refrigerators and preparation room 
are being held:
Are remains being embalmed or refrigerated within 24 Yes 
hours? 
(NRS 451.675)
Are all human remains refrigerated in a self-contained Yes 
mechanical refrigeration unit at a temperature of not
more than 42 degrees? (Temporary rise up to 48
degrees allowed) (NAC 451.015)
Are all remains in refrigeration and on-site properly Yes 
identified? This includes body parts. (NAC 451.070)
Are all remains in refrigeration and on site being stored Yes 
without being on top of other remains? (NAC 642.158)
Are all remains in refrigeration and on-site being stored Yes 
face up? (NAC 642.158)
Are all remains in refrigeration and on-site completely Yes 
covered or clothed (unless embalming)? (NAC 642.158)
Are all remains in refrigeration and on-site being kept Yes 
directly off of the floor? (NAC 642.158)
Does it appear that all bodies in refrigeration and on-site Yes 
are being treated with dignity and respect at all times?
(NAC 642.158, NRS 451.675)
Does it appear that all bodies are being cremated or Yes 
buried within a reasonable amount of time? (NRS
451.020)
Notes 

Reviewed two files based on names written on the white board. Reviewed their files and both 
individuals have been either cremated or removed to another funeral home. Whiteboard was not 
updated. All bodies are current in their refrigerators.

Photo of Outside of Refrigeration 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 8 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Photo of Inside of Refrigeration 

Photo of Temperature Gauge 

Additional Holding Areas 

Additional Photo 

GENERAL ESTABLISHMENT MANAGEMENT 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 9 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Is the approved managing funeral director on-site for Yes 
inspection? (Not required)
How often is the approved managing funeral director on- Daily
site to manage establishment?
Is the managing funeral director available to staff for Yes 
supervision? (NRS 642.345)
Does the managing funeral director live within 120 miles Yes 
of the location? (NAC 642.116)
Does the managing funeral director manage more than No 
3 locations? (NAC 642.116)
If the managing funeral director manages more than Yes 
one location are they within 120 miles of each other?
(NAC 642.116)
Does it appear that the location is being maintained in a Yes 
professional and sanitary manner?  (NRS 642.465) (NAC 
642.158)
Does the location have a blood borne pathogen Yes 
exposure control plan and do they update the plan
annually? (29 CFR 1910.1030)
Have all employees with potential exposure been Yes 
provided blood borne pathogen training annually? (29
CFR 1910.1030)
Have all employees with potential exposure been Yes 
offered a hepatitis B vaccination? (29 CFR 1910.1030)
Notes 
Photo of blood borne pathogen exposure control plan 

ESTABLISHMENT FORMS AND RECORDS 
Is the establishment maintaining records for at least 7 Yes 
years? (NAC 451.200)
Are completed statements of funeral goods and services Yes 
signed by the licensee who made the arrangements?
(NAC 642.152) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 10 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Do completed statements of funeral goods and services Yes 
contain the license number of the individual who made 
the arrangements? (NAC 642.152)
Are embalming reports being completed for each Yes 
decedent after embalming? (NAC 642.168)
Do the embalming reports include the time period Yes 
between death and embalming? (NAC 642.168)
Do the embalming reports include the procedures used Yes 
to embalm the remains? (NAC 642.168)
Do the embalming reports include the signature of the Unknown 
embalmer or apprentice embalmer who embalmed the
remains? (NAC 642.168)
If remains are not stored or cremated at this location, do Yes 
the forms advise consumer of the location where the 
remains will be stored or cremated? (NAC 642.154)
Do records generally appear to be in good order? Yes 
Notes 

Reviewed an embalming report that was not filled out that will be used after the new owners take
over. They have all the required information. 

CASKET INVENTORY 
Does the establishment have a display room containing Yes 
an inventory of funeral caskets?
(NRS 642.016, NAC 642.030) Internet or catalogue
display fulfills this requirement.
Do the prices of displayed caskets conform to the casket Yes 
price list? (16 CFR 453.2(a)(b))
Notes: 
Photo of casket display room or catalogue 

CASKET PRICE LIST 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 11 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does the establishment provide a casket price list?
(NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2))
(If prices of all caskets are listed on the GPL, this item is
not required) 
Does the casket price list contain the name of the
funeral establishment and a caption describing the list
as a “casket price list”?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2)(ii)
Does the casket price list contain the retail prices of all
caskets and alternative containers offered which do not 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

require special ordering, enough information to identify
each, and the effective date for the price list?
(NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2)(i))
Notes 

GENERAL PRICE LIST (GPL) 
Does establishment have a supply of the GPL readily Yes 
available? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(b)(4)(i)(A)
Has the establishment kept a copy of the GPL, CPL, Yes 
OBCPL and SFGSS for one year after the date of their
last distribution to customers? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.6
Does the GPL contain the name, address, and phone Yes 
number of the establishment? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(1)
Does the GPL contain the caption “General Price List”? Yes 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(2)
Does the GPL list the effective date? Yes 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(3)
Does the GPL include the retail prices for all items listed Yes 
below? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(ii)
Check all included items below: 
Forwarding remains to another funeral home
Receiving remains from another funeral home
Price range for direct cremations
Separate price for direct cremations; purchaser provides
container 
Separate prices for each direct cremation offered
including an alternative container
Price range for immediate burials
Separate price for immediate burial where purchaser
provides the casket
Separate price for each immediate burial offered
including a casket or alternative container 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 12 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Price range for caskets or individual prices for caskets
Funeral director and staff services fees 
Transfer of remains to the funeral home 
Embalming
Other preparation of the body
Use of facilities and staff for viewing
Use of facilities and staff for memorial service 
Use of equipment and staff for graveside service
Hearse 
Limousine 
Price range for outer burial containers or the prices of
individual outer burial containers 
Notes 

No Limousine or Outer Burial Containers are offered. 

GENERAL PRICE LIST DISCLOSURES 
Is the following disclosure included in immediate
conjunction with the price shown for embalming?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(2)(ii)
“[Except in certain special cases], embalming is not
required by law. Embalming may be necessary,
however, if you select certain funeral arrangements,
such as a funeral with viewing. If you do not want
embalming, you usually have the right to choose an
arrangement that does not require you to pay for it,
such as direct cremation or immediate burial.” 
Is the following disclosure included in immediate
conjunction with the price range shown for direct
cremations? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(b)(2)
“If you want to arrange a direct cremation, you can use
an alternative container. Alternative containers encase 
the body and can be made of materials like fiberboard
or composition materials (with or without an outside
covering). The containers we provide are (specify
containers).”
If the prices of outer burial containers are listed on the
general price list, is the following disclosure included in
immediate conjunction with those prices?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(c)(2)
“[In most areas of the country], [S]tate or local law does
not require that you buy a container to surround the
casket in the grave. However, many cemeteries require
that you have such a container so that the grave will not
sink in. Either a grave liner or a burial vault will satisfy
these requirements.” 

Yes 

Yes 

N/A 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 13 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Is the following disclosure included immediately above Yes 
the prices contained in the GPL?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.4(b)(2)(a)
“The goods and services shown below are those we can
provide to our customers. You may choose only the
items you desire. However, any funeral arrangements
you select will include a charge for our basic services
and overhead.  If legal or other requirements mean you
must buy any items you did not specifically ask for, we
will explain the reason in writing on the statement we
provide describing the funeral goods and services you
selected.” 
If the establishment lists a separate basic services fee Yes 
that is non-declinable, is the following disclosure
included together with that price?
NRS 642.019 16 CFR 453.2(4)(iii)(C)(1)
“This fee for our basic services [and overhead] will be
added to the total cost of the funeral arrangements you
select. (This fee is already included in our charges for
direct cremations, immediate burials, and forwarding or
receiving remains.”
If the funeral establishment only states the range of Yes 
prices for the caskets on the GPL, is the following
disclosure included with the price range?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(4)(iii)(A)(1)
“A complete price list will be provided at the funeral
home” 
Notes 

They do not sell outer burial containers at the mortuary. The cemetery across the street handles grave
liners. 

ITEMIZED STATEMENT OF FUNERAL GOODS AND SERVICES 
Does the establishment provide an itemized written Yes 
statement for retention to the purchaser at the
conclusion of discussion of arrangements which contains
the funeral goods and funeral services selected and the
prices to be paid for each item? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR
453.2(b)(5)
Does the statement specifically itemize cash advance Yes 
items to the extent known? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 
453.2(b)(5)
Does the statement contain the total cost of the goods Yes 
and services selected? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(5) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 14 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does the statement of funeral goods and services Yes 
identify and briefly describe in writing any legal,
cemetery, or crematory requirement which the funeral
provider represents to persons as compelling the
purchase of funeral goods and services for the funeral
which that person is arranging?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(d)(2)
Notes 

STATEMENT OF FUNERAL GOODS AND SERVICES DISCLOSURE 
Is the following disclosure included in immediate Yes 
conjunction with the list of itemized cash advances?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(f)(2)
“We charge you for our service in obtaining: (specify
cash advance items).”
Is the following disclosure included in the statement of Yes 
funeral goods and services selected?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.4(a)(2)(i)(A)
“Charges are only for those items that you selected or
that are required. If we are required by law or by a
cemetery or crematory to use any items, we will explain
the reasons in writing below.”
Is the following disclosure included in the statement of Yes 
funeral goods and services selected?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.5(b)
“If you selected a funeral that may require embalming,
such as a funeral with viewing, you may have to pay for
embalming. You do not have to pay for embalming you
did not approve if you selected arrangements such as a
direct cremation or immediate burial. If we charged for
embalming, we will explain why below.”
Notes 

OUTER BURIAL CONTAINER PRICE LIST 
Does the establishment provide an outer burial
container price list?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)
(If prices of all outer burial containers are listed on the
GPL, this item is not required) 
Does the outer burial container price list contain the
name of the funeral establishment and a caption
describing the list as a “outer burial container price
list”? 

No 

N/A 

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)(ii) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 15 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does the outer burial container price list contain the N/A
retail prices of all outer burial containers offered which
do not require special ordering, enough information to
identify each, and the effective date for the price list?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)(I)
Notes 

No outer burial containers are offered. 

CREMATION AUTHORIZATION FORM (NRS 451.660) 
This may be reviewed as part of establishment inspection and/or crematory inspection 
Review written authorization form to ensure that it contains the following information: 
Does the form identify the deceased person? (NRS Yes 
451.660)
Does it contain a statement of whether death occurred Yes 
from communicable or otherwise dangerous disease?
(NRS 451.660)
Does it list the name and address of agent? (NRS Yes 
451.660)
Does it list agent’s relationship to decedent? (NRS Yes 
451.660)
Does it contain representation that agent is not aware of Yes 
any objection to cremation by any person who has a
right to control the disposition of remains? (NRS
451.660)
Does it list the name of person authorized to claim Yes 
cremated remains or the name of the cemetery or
person to whom the remains are to be sent? (NRS
451.660)
Notes 

ADVERTISING 
Does establishment advertise? Yes 
Types of advertising: 
For any viewed advertising, does it appear that
everything is fairly and accurately represented? (NRS
642.5172)
Notes: 

Website, pens. 
Yes 

CPL and GPL from funeral home matches 
the online CPL and GPL. 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 16 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
New Photo 

New Photo 

BODY DONATION INFORMATION 
Does the establishment work with any whole body donor No 
organizations?
Notes 

UNCLAIMED VETERANS 
Has the location reviewed all stored cremated remains 
to determine whether they are in possession of any
veterans? NRS 642.0197 
Has the location reported all unclaimed remains of any
veterans to the Department of Veterans Services within
1 year? This includes families who have never returned
to claim the cremated remains.  NRS 642.0197 
Notes 

I was told they actively work with the Veterans Cemetery. 

Yes 

Yes 

REGULATORY FEES 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 17 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Is the location in compliance with submission of
regulatory fees pursuant to NRS 642.0696? 
Do the fees submitted correspond to the number of
signed funeral service agreements for the time period
reviewed?  NRS 642.0696 
Request the list of signed funeral services agreements
for each period reviewed. 
Notes 

This is initial inspection. 

N/A 

N/A 

INSPECTION INFORMATION 
Date of Inspection: 01/27/2025
Time of Inspection: 13:00 
Type of Inspection: Initial 
Name of Inspector: Dr. Wayne A. Fazzino 
Signature of Inspector: 

Name of Establishment Representative at Time of Larry Davis 
Inspection:
Name of Crematory Representative at Time of
Inspection (If different from Establishment)
The Funeral and Cemetery Services Board will review all violations found and issue you a formal letter
after review. 
Signature of Establishment or Crematory Representative
at Time of Inspection: 

Does it appear that any items may need to be reported No 
to local or state health authorities, OSHA, or the Federal 
Trade Commission? 
Additional Photos 
Additional Photo2 
Additional Photo3 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/07/2025 23:34 UTC Page: 18 
Captured at 02/07/2025 23:33 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: D40D3F06-456A-4CBC-B4BA-0DDE148E47F3 

https://gocanvas.com


 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

 

  

 
 

  
 

  

  
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:36 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Hi Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 9:26:30 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Good morning, Randy— 

In December, Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC, filed applications to acquire three existing cemeteries, 
Bunkers Eden Vale, Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn.  All three cemeteries are currently owned by 
Carriage Cemetery Services, Inc.  Closing of the sale is set for Monday, February 24, 2025.  The application is 
missing the “doing business as” (DBA) certificate, and the deed, as these cannot be obtained until after 
closing. Pursuant to statute, the Division of Insurance has approved the acquisition with respect to the 
endowment care account and financial statements.  I removed the financials and the trust agreement from the 
attachments and can provide these to you if needed.  

In addition to acquiring the cemeteries, Legacy submitted applications to acquire Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary 
and Bunker’s Memorial Gardens Mortuary and Crematory.  Due to the size of the files, I will send these to you in a 
separate email.  These applications are complete with the exception of the DBA certificates and the local 
business licenses, which will be provided as soon as possible.  The facilities have been inspected and are 
compliant. 

Given the need for a seamless transaction to continue serving families, I am submitting these applications to you 
for temporary approval effective as of the closing of this transaction.  This will allow the entities to have a 
seamless transaction.  Should the business licenses, DBA certificates, and the deed not be provided by the May 
meeting, the Board may deny the license. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

1 

mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

2 

https://funeral.nv.gov


 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:39 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Hey Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 10:29:18 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Randy--

Hi, again.  Attached are the establishment and crematory applications, as mentioned in my earlier email. 

Will you please consider temporary approval? 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com












	
 �� 

	   





















LICENSE #: G73-01546 DATE ISSUED: 3/31/2025 

TYPE: F05-FUNERAL HOME & CEMETERY EXPIRATION DATE: 9/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 7251 W LONE MOUNTAIN RD 

ISSUED TO: BUNKER'S MEMORY GARDEN MORTUARY 
3103 SACKETT STREET 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 





FFN #202503241004137 filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM by MUNGUIAA - TR *2478506
Expires: O3/24/2O3O - Page 1of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN I'4ARIE GOYA/ COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certificate of Assumed or Fictitious Name
Wce of the Clark County Clerk
LynnMarieGoya FitingType: @New fiRenewal

Thisform is used by a registered business entity tofile an assumed orfctifious name under which business will be
conducted in Clark County, Nevadu. A registered business entity is organized pursusnt to the laws olNevada that
has filed formation documents with the Ofice of the Secretary of State; these entities are required to fle an Annual
List of fficers or its equivalent. For purposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-qualiJied
corporations, limited-liability companies, Iimited partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerchips.

Business Type: (select only one)

ICorporation Slimited-Liability Company [LimiteA Partnership Ifimitea-fiabitity Partnership

Eli-it"a-f,iability Limited Partnership Elp-zuriooA Corporation ElProfessional Association

Assumed or Fictitious Nane: Bunkef's MemOry Gafdens Mortuary

Registered Business Entity: LEGACY FUNEML HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Exac'tly as il is regLstered (or htends to be registod) wirt he Nsoda Secretary of Snrc

Business Contact: (7 1 3) 529'5770 drew@legacyfu n eralg rou p. com
F,mail AddrmPhone l,Iumber

Mailing Address: 31 03 SACKETT ST
Slreet Addres

HOUSTON TX 77098

tlnit/Apt/Suite/Bldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

State/Prcvince

MICHAEL L SOPER
Full Narre (fint niddk last) of the pawn wih signature authoirylor the registered business entity

3t21t2025
,.1 t

Authorized signer signature: etL J7'* Date:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES UNDER
PENALTY OF PERIURYUNDERTHELAWS OFTHE STATE OF

NEVADA THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME IJNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COLTNTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FIVE (s) YEARS
FROM THE FILING DATE.

use only-v7.27.23



FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
AUTHORITY 

In accordance with NRS 642.067, NRS 642.365 and NRS 642.435, the Nevada Board of Funeral and 
Cemetery services has authority to inspect any premises where funeral directing is conducted or
embalming practiced, and is required to make unannounced inspections of each establishment issued
a permit by the Board. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
Name under which the location conducts business: Bunker’s Memory Gardens Mortuary 
Permit #: NEW 
Physical address: 7251 West Lone Mountain Road, Las 

Vegas, Nevada 89129 
Mailing address: 7251 West Lone Mountain Road, Las 

Vegas, Nevada 89129 
Phone number: 702-645-1174 
Owner of location: Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC 
Type of ownership: LLC 
Name of funeral director approved to manage this Larry Davis FD984 
establishment: 
Does the establishment have an on-site crematory? Yes 
Is the crematory under the same ownership? Yes 
Is the area zoned for mixed, commercial, or industrial, Yes 
and at least 1500 feet from a residential parcel? (NRS
451.635)
Photo of Outside of Building: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 1 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Photo of Signage 

Photo of Lobby 

LICENSES 
Establishment permit with name of owner displayed Yes 
conspicuously? (NRS 642.465)
Funeral directors’ licenses displayed conspicuously? Yes 
(NRS 642.460)
Funeral arrangers' licenses displayed conspicuously? Yes 
(NRS 642.460)
Are all individuals meeting with families to make Yes 
arrangements properly licensed? (NRS 642.361)
Does the location employ or contract with a licensed Yes 
embalmer? (NAC 642.161)
Embalmers’ licenses displayed conspicuously? (NRS Yes 
642.110)
Apprentice embalmer certificates of registration N/A
displayed conspicuously? (NRS 642.280)
Does the establishment sell, solicit, negotiate or is party Yes 
to any pre-need contract or provide pre-need services? 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 2 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Is a valid pre-need license available? (NRS 689) Yes 
Notes 
Photo of Displayed Licenses 

New Photo 

New Photo 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 3 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
New Photo 

LIST NAMES AND LICENSE NUMBERS OF ALL LICENSEES: 

Name Kaylin Nixon 
License Number FA95 

Name Larry Davis 
License Number FD984 

Name 
License Number 

Jaye MacPherson 
FD202 

Name 
License Number 

Traci Ortlieb 
FD992 

Name 
License Number 

Sean Winn 
EMB907 

CREMATORY LICENSES 
Is the crematory license issued by the Board displayed Yes 
conspicuously?
Are city and county permits or license displayed? Yes 
Have all individuals who operate the crematory Yes 
equipment completed a crematory certification program
approved by the Board? (NRS 451.635) 
List names of all individuals who currently operate the
crematory equipment:

Tyler Smith
Thomas McBride 
LeCarl Adams 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 4 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Notes 
Photo of Displayed Licenses 

Photo of Crematory Training Certificates 

New Photo 

New Photo 
New Photo 

PREPARATION ROOM 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 5 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does the establishment have a preparation room? (NRS Yes 
642.016)
Is there proper signage and locking doors to prevent Yes 
unauthorized persons from entering preparation room?
(NRS 642.560)
Is the floor sanitary? (NRS 642.016) Yes 
Is there necessary drainage? (NRS 642.016) Yes 
Is there proper ventilation in working order? (NRS Yes 
642.016)
Are fumes and odors prevented from entering other Yes 
parts of the building? (NRS 642.016)
Does the location properly store and dispose of N/A
hazardous waste? (NRS 444.490)
Is this preparation room utilized by the establishment? No 
If not, where are bodies prepared/embalmed?

Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary
925 Las Vegas Boulevard, North,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Is embalming performed at this location? No 
If not, where are bodies embalmed? Bunker’s Eden Vale 
Notes 

They took a storage room and made it into a new preparation room.
Preparation Room Signage 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 6 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Preparation Room Locking Doors: 

Preparation Room Drainage: 

Preparation Room Ventilation: 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 7 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Preparation Room Overview Photo: 

Hazardous Waste Container Photo: 

HUMAN REMAINS 
Are human remains stored at this location? 
Where are bodies from this location stored? 
Notes 

No refrigerators at this location.
Photo of Outside of Refrigeration
Photo of Inside of Refrigeration
Photo of Temperature Gauge
Additional Holding Areas
Additional Photo 

No 
Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary 

CREMATORY EQUIPMENT INFORMATION 
Number of retorts 
Fuel source: 
Manufacturer of retorts: 

2 
Natural Gas 

Matthews 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 8 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Date the retorts were last serviced? September 2024
Notes: 
Retort Photo 

Retort Photo2 

Retort Photo3 

PROCEDURE AND SPACE FOR CREMATION 
Is the space within the crematory enclosed? (NRS Yes 
451.680)
Is the crematory only used for the cremation of human Yes 
remains? (NRS 451.680)
Is an identifying document or label removed from Yes 
container and kept near control panel until cremation is
completed? (NRS 451.680)
Is all recoverable residue properly removed from Yes 
chamber following cremation? (NRS 451.680)
Is a pulverizer or crusher on-site? (Cremated remains Yes 
must be reduced to particles no larger than 1/8 of an
inch) (NRS 451.700) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 9 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Notes 

Retorts were empty during the inspection. Control document was with the cremains that were cooling
down by the pulverizer.

Photo of pulverizer area 

Photo of documents near control panel 

INCINERATION CONTAINERS 
Do all containers used cover the human remains Unknown 
completely when closed? (NRS 451.675)
Do all containers used resist leaking or spilling? (NRS Unknown 
451.675)
Are all containers rigid enough for easy handling? (NRS Unknown 
451.675) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 10 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Notes 

No containers were at the crematory during the inspection. I did inspect the containers at Bunkers
Eden Vale later in the day and they meet the requirements. Decedents are placed in an alternative
container and brought to this crematory from Bunkers Eden Vale. Picture of container from Bunker’s
Eden Vale is below. 

Photo of Containers 

Photo of Containers 

CREMATORY RECORDS 
Is the crematory maintaining records for at least 7 Yes 
years? (R067-15)
Does the crematory keep a record of each authorization Yes 
received? (NRS 451.665) 
Does the crematory keep a record of the name of each Yes 
person whose human remains are received? (NRS
451.665)
Does the crematory keep a record of the date and time Yes 
of receipt of remains? (NRS 451.665) 
Does the crematory keep a record of the description of Yes 
the container in which the remains are received?  (NRS
451.665)
Does the crematory keep a record of the date of Yes 
cremation? (NRS 451.665) 
Does the crematory keep a record of the final Yes 
disposition of the cremated remains? (NRS 451.665) 
Do records generally appear to be in good order? Yes 
If records are not kept on-site, location where records Bunkers Eden Vale and Bunkers Memory
are stored: Gardens 
Notes 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 11 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Photo of Cremation Log 

Photo 

DELIVERY AND TRANSPORTATION OF CREMATED REMAINS 
Does the crematory keep a record of receipts for Yes 
delivery of cremated remains? (NRS 451.690)
Do receipts for delivery of cremated remains contain the Yes 
name of the person receiving the remains? (NRS
451.690)
Do receipts for delivery of cremated remains contain the Yes 
date, time, and place of receipt of the remains? (NRS
451.690)
Are temporary urns used to deliver cremated remains Yes 
placed in suitable containers? (NRS 451.690)
Are temporary urns marked with the name of the person Yes 
it contains? (NRS 451.690)
Are temporary urns marked with the name of the Yes 
operator of the crematory? (NRS 451.690) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 12 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Notes 

No labeled urn was at this location. Photo was taken at Bunker’s Eden Vale where cremains are stored. 
Photo of Temporary Urn 

Photo of Temporary Urn Label 

GENERAL ESTABLISHMENT MANAGEMENT 
Is the approved managing funeral director on-site for Yes 
inspection? (Not required)
How often is the approved managing funeral director on- Every morning 
site to manage establishment?
Is the managing funeral director available to staff for Yes 
supervision? (NRS 642.345)
Does the managing funeral director live within 120 miles Yes 
of the location? (NAC 642.116)
Does the managing funeral director manage more than No 
3 locations? (NAC 642.116)
If the managing funeral director manages more than Yes 
one location are they within 120 miles of each other?
(NAC 642.116) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 13 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does it appear that the location is being maintained in a Yes 
professional and sanitary manner?  (NRS 642.465) (NAC 
642.158)
Does the location have a blood borne pathogen Yes 
exposure control plan and do they update the plan
annually? (29 CFR 1910.1030)
Have all employees with potential exposure been Yes 
provided blood borne pathogen training annually? (29
CFR 1910.1030)
Have all employees with potential exposure been Yes 
offered a hepatitis B vaccination? (29 CFR 1910.1030)
Notes 

I asked the employees at both Bunkers locations and they acknowledged they were offered a
vaccination. 

Photo of blood borne pathogen exposure control plan 

ESTABLISHMENT FORMS AND RECORDS 
Is the establishment maintaining records for at least 7 N/A
years? (NAC 451.200)
Are completed statements of funeral goods and services N/A
signed by the licensee who made the arrangements?
(NAC 642.152)
Do completed statements of funeral goods and services N/A
contain the license number of the individual who made 
the arrangements? (NAC 642.152)
Are embalming reports being completed for each N/A
decedent after embalming? (NAC 642.168)
Do the embalming reports include the time period N/A
between death and embalming? (NAC 642.168)
Do the embalming reports include the procedures used N/A
to embalm the remains? (NAC 642.168) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 14 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Do the embalming reports include the signature of the N/A
embalmer or apprentice embalmer who embalmed the
remains? (NAC 642.168)
If remains are not stored or cremated at this location, do Yes 
the forms advise consumer of the location where the 
remains will be stored or cremated? (NAC 642.154)
Do records generally appear to be in good order? Yes 
Notes 

No arrangements are made at this location. Only maintaining a license. Forms were provided to
indicate that decedent’s from this location will be stored downtown at Bunker’s Eden Vale. 

CASKET INVENTORY 
Does the establishment have a display room containing Yes 
an inventory of funeral caskets?
(NRS 642.016, NAC 642.030) Internet or catalogue
display fulfills this requirement.
Do the prices of displayed caskets conform to the casket Yes 
price list? (16 CFR 453.2(a)(b))
Notes: 

They use the Batesville websitefor their casket offerings.  No casket prices are listed in the electronic 
media displaying caskets

Photo of casket display room or catalogue 

CASKET PRICE LIST 
Does the establishment provide a casket price list? Yes 
(NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2))
(If prices of all caskets are listed on the GPL, this item is
not required)
Does the casket price list contain the name of the Yes 
funeral establishment and a caption describing the list
as a “casket price list”?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2)(ii) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 15 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does the casket price list contain the retail prices of all Yes 
caskets and alternative containers offered which do not 
require special ordering, enough information to identify
each, and the effective date for the price list?
(NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(2)(i))
Notes 

Casket Price List range matches the General Price List Casket range. 

GENERAL PRICE LIST (GPL) 
Does establishment have a supply of the GPL readily Yes 
available? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(b)(4)(i)(A)
Has the establishment kept a copy of the GPL, CPL, Yes 
OBCPL and SFGSS for one year after the date of their
last distribution to customers? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.6
Does the GPL contain the name, address, and phone Yes 
number of the establishment? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(1)
Does the GPL contain the caption “General Price List”? Yes 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(2)
Does the GPL list the effective date? Yes 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(i)(C)(3)
Does the GPL include the retail prices for all items listed Yes 
below? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2 (b)(4)(ii)
Check all included items below: 
Forwarding remains to another funeral home
Receiving remains from another funeral home
Price range for direct cremations
Separate price for direct cremations; purchaser provides
container 
Separate prices for each direct cremation offered
including an alternative container
Price range for immediate burials
Separate price for immediate burial where purchaser
provides the casket
Separate price for each immediate burial offered
including a casket or alternative container
Price range for caskets or individual prices for caskets
Funeral director and staff services fees 
Transfer of remains to the funeral home 
Embalming
Other preparation of the body
Use of facilities and staff for viewing
Use of facilities and staff for memorial service 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 16 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


Use of equipment and staff for graveside service
Hearse 
Limousine 
Price range for outer burial containers or the prices of
individual outer burial containers 
Notes 

FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist

No Limousine and no Outer Burial Containers are offered. 

GENERAL PRICE LIST DISCLOSURES 
Is the following disclosure included in immediate
conjunction with the price shown for embalming?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(2)(ii)
“[Except in certain special cases], embalming is not
required by law. Embalming may be necessary,
however, if you select certain funeral arrangements,
such as a funeral with viewing. If you do not want
embalming, you usually have the right to choose an
arrangement that does not require you to pay for it,
such as direct cremation or immediate burial.” 
Is the following disclosure included in immediate
conjunction with the price range shown for direct
cremations? 
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(b)(2)
“If you want to arrange a direct cremation, you can use
an alternative container. Alternative containers encase 
the body and can be made of materials like fiberboard
or composition materials (with or without an outside
covering). The containers we provide are (specify
containers).”
If the prices of outer burial containers are listed on the
general price list, is the following disclosure included in
immediate conjunction with those prices?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(c)(2)
“[In most areas of the country], [S]tate or local law does
not require that you buy a container to surround the
casket in the grave. However, many cemeteries require
that you have such a container so that the grave will not
sink in. Either a grave liner or a burial vault will satisfy
these requirements.” 

Yes 

Yes 

N/A 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 17 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Is the following disclosure included immediately above
the prices contained in the GPL?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.4(b)(2)(a)
“The goods and services shown below are those we can
provide to our customers. You may choose only the
items you desire. However, any funeral arrangements
you select will include a charge for our basic services
and overhead.  If legal or other requirements mean you
must buy any items you did not specifically ask for, we
will explain the reason in writing on the statement we
provide describing the funeral goods and services you
selected.” 

Yes 

If the establishment lists a separate basic services fee
that is non-declinable, is the following disclosure
included together with that price?
NRS 642.019 16 CFR 453.2(4)(iii)(C)(1)
“This fee for our basic services [and overhead] will be
added to the total cost of the funeral arrangements you
select. (This fee is already included in our charges for
direct cremations, immediate burials, and forwarding or
receiving remains.” 
If the funeral establishment only states the range of
prices for the caskets on the GPL, is the following
disclosure included with the price range?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(4)(iii)(A)(1)
“A complete price list will be provided at the funeral
home” 

Yes 

Yes 

Notes 

ITEMIZED STATEMENT OF FUNERAL GOODS AND SERVICES 
Does the establishment provide an itemized written Yes 
statement for retention to the purchaser at the
conclusion of discussion of arrangements which contains
the funeral goods and funeral services selected and the
prices to be paid for each item? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR
453.2(b)(5)
Does the statement specifically itemize cash advance Yes 
items to the extent known? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 
453.2(b)(5)
Does the statement contain the total cost of the goods Yes 
and services selected? NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(5) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 18 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does the statement of funeral goods and services Yes 
identify and briefly describe in writing any legal,
cemetery, or crematory requirement which the funeral
provider represents to persons as compelling the
purchase of funeral goods and services for the funeral
which that person is arranging?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(d)(2)
Notes 

STATEMENT OF FUNERAL GOODS AND SERVICES DISCLOSURE 
Is the following disclosure included in immediate Yes 
conjunction with the list of itemized cash advances?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.3(f)(2)
“We charge you for our service in obtaining: (specify
cash advance items).”
Is the following disclosure included in the statement of Yes 
funeral goods and services selected?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.4(a)(2)(i)(A)
“Charges are only for those items that you selected or
that are required. If we are required by law or by a
cemetery or crematory to use any items, we will explain
the reasons in writing below.”
Is the following disclosure included in the statement of Yes 
funeral goods and services selected?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.5(b)
“If you selected a funeral that may require embalming,
such as a funeral with viewing, you may have to pay for
embalming. You do not have to pay for embalming you
did not approve if you selected arrangements such as a
direct cremation or immediate burial. If we charged for
embalming, we will explain why below.”
Notes 

OUTER BURIAL CONTAINER PRICE LIST 
Does the establishment provide an outer burial
container price list?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)
(If prices of all outer burial containers are listed on the
GPL, this item is not required) 
Does the outer burial container price list contain the
name of the funeral establishment and a caption
describing the list as a “outer burial container price
list”? 

No 

N/A 

NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)(ii) 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 19 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
Does the outer burial container price list contain the N/A
retail prices of all outer burial containers offered which
do not require special ordering, enough information to
identify each, and the effective date for the price list?
NRS 642.019, 16 CFR 453.2(b)(3)(I)
Notes 

No Outer Burial Containers are offered by this mortuary establishment. 

CREMATION AUTHORIZATION FORM (NRS 451.660) 
This may be reviewed as part of establishment inspection and/or crematory inspection 
Review written authorization form to ensure that it contains the following information: 
Does the form identify the deceased person? (NRS N/A
451.660)
Does it contain a statement of whether death occurred Yes 
from communicable or otherwise dangerous disease?
(NRS 451.660)
Does it list the name and address of agent? (NRS N/A
451.660)
Does it list agent’s relationship to decedent? (NRS N/A
451.660)
Does it contain representation that agent is not aware of Yes 
any objection to cremation by any person who has a
right to control the disposition of remains? (NRS
451.660)
Does it list the name of person authorized to claim N/A
cremated remains or the name of the cemetery or
person to whom the remains are to be sent? (NRS
451.660)
Notes 

The Cremation Authorization has all the disclosures to be in compliance with FTC admonitions. This
location has never been used as a mortuary but maintains a license should they want to operate the
mortuary in the future. 

ADVERTISING 
Does establishment advertise? No 
Notes: They advertise the Memory Gardens

Cemetery and not the mortuary. 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 20 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist
New Photo 

New Photo 

BODY DONATION INFORMATION 
Does the establishment work with any whole body donor No 
organizations?
Does the location cremate body parts? No 
Notes 

In the past on rare occasions, they have cremated amputee body parts at the request of the body
owner still alive. 

UNCLAIMED VETERANS 
Has the location reviewed all stored cremated remains N/A
to determine whether they are in possession of any
veterans? NRS 642.0197 
Has the location reported all unclaimed remains of any N/A
veterans to the Department of Veterans Services within
1 year? This includes families who have never returned
to claim the cremated remains.  NRS 642.0197 
Notes 

All cremated remains go downtown. None are at this location. 

REGULATORY FEES 
Is the location in compliance with submission of N/A
regulatory fees pursuant to NRS 642.0696?
Do the fees submitted correspond to the number of N/A
signed funeral service agreements for the time period
reviewed?  NRS 642.0696 
Request the list of signed funeral services agreements
for each period reviewed.
Notes 

This is a NEW location inspection. 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 21 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


INSPECTION INFORMATION 

FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, 89509

Phone (775) 825-5535
Fax (775) 507-4102

Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

Funeral Establishment Inspection Checklist

Date of Inspection: 01/27/2025
Time of Inspection: 11:30 
Type of Inspection: Initial 
Name of Inspector: Dr. Wayne A. Fazzino 
Signature of Inspector: 

Name of Establishment Representative at Time of Larry Davis 
Inspection:
Name of Crematory Representative at Time of Tyler Smith 
Inspection (If different from Establishment)
The Funeral and Cemetery Services Board will review all violations found and issue you a formal letter
after review. 
Signature of Establishment or Crematory Representative
at Time of Inspection: 

Does it appear that any items may need to be reported No 
to local or state health authorities, OSHA, or the Federal 
Trade Commission? 
Additional Photos 
Additional Photo2 
Additional Photo3 

Submitted by Wayne Fazzino at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC Page: 22 
Captured at 02/21/2025 16:17 UTC gocanvas.com
Submission ID: 3A88B0E6-85BE-4522-AF22-4F240FA1DE12 

https://gocanvas.com


 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

 

  

 
 

  
 

  

  
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:36 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Hi Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 9:26:30 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Good morning, Randy— 

In December, Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC, filed applications to acquire three existing cemeteries, 
Bunkers Eden Vale, Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn.  All three cemeteries are currently owned by 
Carriage Cemetery Services, Inc.  Closing of the sale is set for Monday, February 24, 2025.  The application is 
missing the “doing business as” (DBA) certificate, and the deed, as these cannot be obtained until after 
closing. Pursuant to statute, the Division of Insurance has approved the acquisition with respect to the 
endowment care account and financial statements.  I removed the financials and the trust agreement from the 
attachments and can provide these to you if needed.  

In addition to acquiring the cemeteries, Legacy submitted applications to acquire Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary 
and Bunker’s Memorial Gardens Mortuary and Crematory.  Due to the size of the files, I will send these to you in a 
separate email.  These applications are complete with the exception of the DBA certificates and the local 
business licenses, which will be provided as soon as possible.  The facilities have been inspected and are 
compliant. 

Given the need for a seamless transaction to continue serving families, I am submitting these applications to you 
for temporary approval effective as of the closing of this transaction.  This will allow the entities to have a 
seamless transaction.  Should the business licenses, DBA certificates, and the deed not be provided by the May 
meeting, the Board may deny the license. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

1 

mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

2 

https://funeral.nv.gov


 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:39 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Hey Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 10:29:18 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Randy--

Hi, again.  Attached are the establishment and crematory applications, as mentioned in my earlier email. 

Will you please consider temporary approval? 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com












	
 �� 

	   





















LICENSE #: G73-01546 DATE ISSUED: 3/31/2025 

TYPE: F05-FUNERAL HOME & CEMETERY EXPIRATION DATE: 9/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 7251 W LONE MOUNTAIN RD 

ISSUED TO: BUNKER'S MEMORY GARDEN MORTUARY 
3103 SACKETT STREET 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 





FFN #202503241004137 filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM by MUNGUIAA - TR *2478506
Expires: O3/24/2O3O - Page 1of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN I'4ARIE GOYA/ COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certificate of Assumed or Fictitious Name
Wce of the Clark County Clerk
LynnMarieGoya FitingType: @New fiRenewal

Thisform is used by a registered business entity tofile an assumed orfctifious name under which business will be
conducted in Clark County, Nevadu. A registered business entity is organized pursusnt to the laws olNevada that
has filed formation documents with the Ofice of the Secretary of State; these entities are required to fle an Annual
List of fficers or its equivalent. For purposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-qualiJied
corporations, limited-liability companies, Iimited partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerchips.

Business Type: (select only one)

ICorporation Slimited-Liability Company [LimiteA Partnership Ifimitea-fiabitity Partnership

Eli-it"a-f,iability Limited Partnership Elp-zuriooA Corporation ElProfessional Association

Assumed or Fictitious Nane: Bunkef's MemOry Gafdens Mortuary

Registered Business Entity: LEGACY FUNEML HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Exac'tly as il is regLstered (or htends to be registod) wirt he Nsoda Secretary of Snrc

Business Contact: (7 1 3) 529'5770 drew@legacyfu n eralg rou p. com
F,mail AddrmPhone l,Iumber

Mailing Address: 31 03 SACKETT ST
Slreet Addres

HOUSTON TX 77098

tlnit/Apt/Suite/Bldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

State/Prcvince

MICHAEL L SOPER
Full Narre (fint niddk last) of the pawn wih signature authoirylor the registered business entity

3t21t2025
,.1 t

Authorized signer signature: etL J7'* Date:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES UNDER
PENALTY OF PERIURYUNDERTHELAWS OFTHE STATE OF

NEVADA THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME IJNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COLTNTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FIVE (s) YEARS
FROM THE FILING DATE.

use only-v7.27.23























 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

 

  

 
 

  
 

  

  
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:36 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Hi Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 9:26:30 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Good morning, Randy— 

In December, Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC, filed applications to acquire three existing cemeteries, 
Bunkers Eden Vale, Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn.  All three cemeteries are currently owned by 
Carriage Cemetery Services, Inc.  Closing of the sale is set for Monday, February 24, 2025.  The application is 
missing the “doing business as” (DBA) certificate, and the deed, as these cannot be obtained until after 
closing. Pursuant to statute, the Division of Insurance has approved the acquisition with respect to the 
endowment care account and financial statements.  I removed the financials and the trust agreement from the 
attachments and can provide these to you if needed.  

In addition to acquiring the cemeteries, Legacy submitted applications to acquire Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary 
and Bunker’s Memorial Gardens Mortuary and Crematory.  Due to the size of the files, I will send these to you in a 
separate email.  These applications are complete with the exception of the DBA certificates and the local 
business licenses, which will be provided as soon as possible.  The facilities have been inspected and are 
compliant. 

Given the need for a seamless transaction to continue serving families, I am submitting these applications to you 
for temporary approval effective as of the closing of this transaction.  This will allow the entities to have a 
seamless transaction.  Should the business licenses, DBA certificates, and the deed not be provided by the May 
meeting, the Board may deny the license. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

1 

mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

2 

https://funeral.nv.gov


 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:39 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Hey Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 10:29:18 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Randy--

Hi, again.  Attached are the establishment and crematory applications, as mentioned in my earlier email. 

Will you please consider temporary approval? 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com












	
�� 

	    


























































LICENSE #: G73-01647 DATE ISSUED: 4/6/2025 

TYPE: Q05-FUNERAL HOME ADMINISTRATOR EXPIRATION DATE: 10/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 1216 N LAS VEGAS BLVD 

ISSUED TO: BUNKER'S EDEN VALE MEMORIAL PARK 
3103 SACKETT ST 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 



LICENSE #: G73-01682 DATE ISSUED: 4/8/2025 

TYPE: F05-FUNERAL HOME & CEMETERY EXPIRATION DATE: 10/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 925 N LAS VEGAS BLVD 

ISSUED TO: BUNKER'S EDEN VALE MORTUARY 
3103 SACKETT ST 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 



FFN #202503241004131 filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM by MUNGUIAA - TR #2478506
Expiresz O3/24/2O3O - Page 1of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN IIARIE GOYA, COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS E]\TITY
Certificate of'Assumed or Fictilious Name
Ofice of the Clark County Aerk
Lynn Marie Goya Filing Type: SNew I Renewal

This form is used by a registered business entity tofile an assumed orfctitious name under which business will be
conducted in Clark County, Nevada. A registered business entity is organized pursuant to the laws of Nevada that
has filed formation documents with the Ofice of the Secretary of State; these mtities are required to fle an Annual
List of fficers or its equivalent.. For purpose-s of this form, these include domestic and foreign-qualfred
corporations, limited-liability companies, limited partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerships.

Business Type: (select only one)

SCorporation Elimited-Liability Company fllimitedfartnersnip It imitea-tiability Paftlership

Elti-it"a-riability Limited Partnership EProfessional Corporation 
-ElProfessional 

Association

Assumed or Fictitious Nane: Bunke/s Eden Vale Memorial Park

RegisteredBusiness Entity: LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Emctly'as il is rcgistued (or inEndc lo be registered) wilh lhe Nqado Secrelory of Stale

Business Contact: g1 3) 529'5770 d rew@ legacyfu n eralg rou p. co m
EmilAddrcsPhone Irlumber

Matling Addrcss: 31 03 SACKETT ST
Street Address

HOUSTON TX 77098

Uniy'Apt/Suia/Bldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

Authorized Signer Signature:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES I]NDER
PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDERTHE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEVADA TTIAT TTIE FOREGOING IS TRI.IE AND CORRECT. A
FILBD CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSTIMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FTVE (5) YEARS
FROM TIIE FILING DATE.

Sute/Proince

MICHAEL L SOPER
Full Nane (first niddle lut) of tle with sigaaure authoriryfor the registued bwiness ufiU

D^tet312112025

ffice w only -v7-27.23



























         
   

          
 

            
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 

JOE LOMBARDO DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ 
Governor Director 

SCOTT J. KIPPER 
Commissioner 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 
DIVISION OF INSURANCE 

January 16, 2025 

Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC 
3103 Sackett St. 
Houston, TX  77098 

Dear Mr. Soper, 

The purpose of this correspondence is to notify you, per the requirements of NRS 452.590, that 
the State of Nevada, Department of Business and Industry, Division of Insurance (“Division”) 
grants its approval of the acquisition of three cemeteries (Bunker’s Eden Vale Memorial Park, 
Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn Cemetery) from Carriage Funeral Holdings by 
Legacy Funeral Holding of Nevada, LLC. 

Sincerely, 

Nick J. Stosic 
Deputy Commissioner of Insurance 

Carson City: 1818 E. College Parkway, Suite 103 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 687-0700 - Fax (775) 687-0797 

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 275 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 - Telephone (702) 486-4009 - Fax (702) 486-4007 
DOI.NV.GOV 

https://DOI.NV.GOV


 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

 

  

 
 

  
 

  

  
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:36 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Hi Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 9:26:30 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Good morning, Randy— 

In December, Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC, filed applications to acquire three existing cemeteries, 
Bunkers Eden Vale, Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn.  All three cemeteries are currently owned by 
Carriage Cemetery Services, Inc.  Closing of the sale is set for Monday, February 24, 2025.  The application is 
missing the “doing business as” (DBA) certificate, and the deed, as these cannot be obtained until after 
closing. Pursuant to statute, the Division of Insurance has approved the acquisition with respect to the 
endowment care account and financial statements.  I removed the financials and the trust agreement from the 
attachments and can provide these to you if needed.  

In addition to acquiring the cemeteries, Legacy submitted applications to acquire Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary 
and Bunker’s Memorial Gardens Mortuary and Crematory.  Due to the size of the files, I will send these to you in a 
separate email.  These applications are complete with the exception of the DBA certificates and the local 
business licenses, which will be provided as soon as possible.  The facilities have been inspected and are 
compliant. 

Given the need for a seamless transaction to continue serving families, I am submitting these applications to you 
for temporary approval effective as of the closing of this transaction.  This will allow the entities to have a 
seamless transaction.  Should the business licenses, DBA certificates, and the deed not be provided by the May 
meeting, the Board may deny the license. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

1 

mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

2 

https://funeral.nv.gov


 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:39 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Hey Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 10:29:18 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Randy--

Hi, again.  Attached are the establishment and crematory applications, as mentioned in my earlier email. 

Will you please consider temporary approval? 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com












	
�� 

	    
























































LICENSE #: G73-01547 DATE ISSUED: 3/31/2025 

TYPE: Q05-FUNERAL & CEMETERY ADMINISTRATORS EXPIRATION DATE: 9/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 7251 W LONE MOUNTAIN RD 

ISSUED TO: BUNKER'S MEMORY GARDEN MORTUARY 
3103 SACKETT STREET 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 



LICENSE #: G73-01546 DATE ISSUED: 3/31/2025 

TYPE: F05-FUNERAL HOME & CEMETERY EXPIRATION DATE: 9/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 7251 W LONE MOUNTAIN RD 

ISSUED TO: BUNKER'S MEMORY GARDEN MORTUARY 
3103 SACKETT STREET 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 



FFN #202503241004135 filed
Expires: O3/24/2O3O - Paqe

03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM

1 of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN
by MUNGUIAA
},IARIE GOYA,

- TR *247A506
COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certificate of Assumed or Fictitious Name
Ofr"" of the Clark County Clerk
Lytn Marie Goya tr'ilingType: $New flRenewal

This form is used by a registered business entity tofle an assumed orfctitious nane under which business will be

conducted in Clark County, Nevada. A registered business entity is organized pursuant to the laws of Nevada that
has filed formation documents with the ffice of the Secretary of State; these entities are required to fle an Annual
List of fficers or its equivalent. For Wrposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-quaffied
corporations, limited-liability companies, limited partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limitedJiability
limited parnerships.

Business Type: (select only one)

frcorporation Erimitea-riabilitycompany El-imitedPartnenhip
EUmit"a-fiabilityLimitedParmership Ep-f"*tiooaCorporation

fi Limited-Liability Partnership

E Professional Association

Assumed or FictitiousName: Bunker's Memory Gardens Memorial Park

Registered Business Entity: LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Eruclly as it Lt registered (or intends to be registered) with the Nevada Secrctory ofstate

(713\ 529-5770 drew@ legacyfu n eralg rou p. co m
Phone Number

3103 SACKETT ST

Business Contact:

Mailing Address:

HOUSTON

EmoilAdrss

SmetAddress UnilApt/Suite./Bldg

77098 USATX

Print Authorized Signer Name:

Stat"JPrpvince

MICHAEL L SOPER
FIIJ Name (fint middle last) of the penon wiih signoure authority for lhe regi*ered business entily

Authorized Signer Signature:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES UNDER

PENALTY OF PERruRY UNDER TIIE LAIJIIS OF THE STATE OF

NEVADA THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTTTIOUS

NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COTINTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS

FROM TIIE FILING DATE.

ortez312112025



FFN #202503241004140
Expires: 03/24/2O3O

filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM by MUNGUIAA
- Page 1 of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN I'IARIE GOYA,

- TR *2478506
COUNTY CLERK

This form is used by a registered bupin
conducted in Clark County, Nevada, A
has filed formation documents with the
List of Oficers or its equivalmt. For purposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-qualified
corporations, limited-liability companies, limited partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
liruited partnerships.

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certiftcate olAssumed or Fictitious Name
ffice of the Clark County Clerk
Lyrn Marie Goya FilingType: fiNew fiRenewal

Business Type: (select only one)

ficorporation ftltimited-l,iability company El,imited Partnership ILimitea-Liabiliry Parrnership

Er,i-it"a-r,iabilify Limited Partnership fllrofessional Corporation ElProfessional Association

Assumed or Fictitious Name: Memory Gardens Cemetery

RegisteredBusine*sEnrity: LEGACY FUNEML HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Exoctly as il b regislered (or inlends to be registered) wih the Nqado Secretary of State

Business Contact: 913) 529-5770 drew@legacyfun eralg rou p. com

Mailing Address:

Phone Number

31 03 SACKETT ST

Enoil Ailress

Strcet Address

HOUSTON TX 77098

Unit/Apt/Suite/Bldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

StatdProvbce

MICHAEL L SOPER
Full Nare (first niddle lost) oJtheperton|9ith Eignatwe authoityJor heregist*ed business entily

3t2112025

.0

Authorized signer signature: A^e Jfu Date:

BY SICNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES UNDER
PENALTY OF PERIURY T]NDER TI{E LAWS OF TIIE STATE OF
NEVADA THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRTIE AND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDERWHICH ABUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA,, IS VALID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS
FROM TIIE FILING DATE.



FFN #202503241004134
Expires z 03/24/2O3O

filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM by MUNGUIAA
- Page 1 of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN t"lARIE GOYA,

- TR #2478506
COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Cenificate of Assumed or Fictitioas Name
Oftiu of the Clark County Clerk
Lynn Marie Goya FitingType: ElNew flRenewal

This form is used by a registerd business entity to file an asswned or fictitious name under which business will be

conducted in Clark County, Nevada. A registered business entity k organized pursuant to the laws ofNevada that
has filed formation documents with the Offce of the Secretary of State; these entities are required to file an Annual
List of Oficerc or its equivalent. For pwposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-qualified
corporations, limited-liability companies, limited putnerships, limited-Iiability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerships.

Business Type: (select only one)

SCorporation Blimited-LiabilityCompany [timiteaPartnership
Eti-itea-r,iabilityLimitedPartnership ElnofessionalCorporation

fl timitea-liability Partnership

El Professional Association

Assumed or Fictitious Name: Memory Gardens Memorial Park

Registered Business Entity : LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Ersctty os it is regist*d (or htznds to be registered) wilh the Ndodo Secretlry of Sratc

(713) 529-5770 drew@ legacyfu n eralg rou p. co mBusiness Contact:

Mailing Address:

Phone Number

3103 SACKETT ST

Email Ailrcss

Stree, Address

HOUSTON TX 77098

Uni(Apt/SuitdBldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

Authorized Signer Signature:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES IJNDER
PENALTY OF PERruRYUNDERTHELAWS OF THE STATE OF

NEVADATHAT TIIEFOREGOA.IG IS TRUBAND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASS{IMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEINGCONDUCTED IN
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS

FROM THE FILING DATE.

Slote/Province

MICHAEL L SOPER
Futl Name (firct middle last) oltle paton wirh signotvre authorityJor the regist*ed htsiness entity

ostez312112025

























         
   

          
 

            
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 

JOE LOMBARDO DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ 
Governor Director 

SCOTT J. KIPPER 
Commissioner 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 
DIVISION OF INSURANCE 

January 16, 2025 

Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC 
3103 Sackett St. 
Houston, TX  77098 

Dear Mr. Soper, 

The purpose of this correspondence is to notify you, per the requirements of NRS 452.590, that 
the State of Nevada, Department of Business and Industry, Division of Insurance (“Division”) 
grants its approval of the acquisition of three cemeteries (Bunker’s Eden Vale Memorial Park, 
Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn Cemetery) from Carriage Funeral Holdings by 
Legacy Funeral Holding of Nevada, LLC. 

Sincerely, 

Nick J. Stosic 
Deputy Commissioner of Insurance 

Carson City: 1818 E. College Parkway, Suite 103 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 687-0700 - Fax (775) 687-0797 

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 275 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 - Telephone (702) 486-4009 - Fax (702) 486-4007 
DOI.NV.GOV 

https://DOI.NV.GOV


 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

 

  

 
 

  
 

  

  
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:36 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Hi Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 9:26:30 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Good morning, Randy— 

In December, Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC, filed applications to acquire three existing cemeteries, 
Bunkers Eden Vale, Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn.  All three cemeteries are currently owned by 
Carriage Cemetery Services, Inc.  Closing of the sale is set for Monday, February 24, 2025.  The application is 
missing the “doing business as” (DBA) certificate, and the deed, as these cannot be obtained until after 
closing. Pursuant to statute, the Division of Insurance has approved the acquisition with respect to the 
endowment care account and financial statements.  I removed the financials and the trust agreement from the 
attachments and can provide these to you if needed.  

In addition to acquiring the cemeteries, Legacy submitted applications to acquire Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary 
and Bunker’s Memorial Gardens Mortuary and Crematory.  Due to the size of the files, I will send these to you in a 
separate email.  These applications are complete with the exception of the DBA certificates and the local 
business licenses, which will be provided as soon as possible.  The facilities have been inspected and are 
compliant. 

Given the need for a seamless transaction to continue serving families, I am submitting these applications to you 
for temporary approval effective as of the closing of this transaction.  This will allow the entities to have a 
seamless transaction.  Should the business licenses, DBA certificates, and the deed not be provided by the May 
meeting, the Board may deny the license. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

1 

mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

2 

https://funeral.nv.gov


 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:39 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Hey Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 10:29:18 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Randy--

Hi, again.  Attached are the establishment and crematory applications, as mentioned in my earlier email. 

Will you please consider temporary approval? 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com












	 
� �

  � �  	





















































LICENSE #: G73-01649 DATE ISSUED: 4/6/2025 

TYPE: F05-CEMETERY EXPIRATION DATE: 10/1/2025 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 1500 N LAS VEGAS BLVD 

ISSUED TO: WOODLAWN CEMETERY 
3103 SACKETT ST 
HOUSTON, TX 77098 





FFN #202503241004139 filed
Expiresz O3/24/2O3O - Page

03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM
1 of 1 - $25. O0 - LYNN

- TR *2478506
COUNTY CLERK

by MUNGUIAA
},TARIE GOYA/

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certificate of Assumed or Ficfitious Name
Ofiu of the Clark County Clerk
Lynn Marie Goya FilingType: EUew flRenewal

This form is used by a registered business entily toJile an qssumed orfictitious name under which business will be
conducled in Clark County, Nevadar A registered business entity is organized pursuont to the lews of Nevada that
has Jiled formqtion documents wirt the ffice of the Secretary of State; these entities are required to fiIe an Annual
List of Oficers or its equi'rtalent.. For purposes of lhis form, these include domestic and foreign-qualified
corporations, limiled-liability companies, limited partnerships, limited-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerships.

Business Type: (select only one)

fiCorporation Stimited-LiabilityCompany flf,imiteaPartnership
Efimitea-f,iability Limited Partnership fiProfessional Corporation

Assumed or Fictitious Name: H istoric Woodlawn Cemetery

fr Limite0-f i ability Parfi rership

E Professional Association

Registered Business Entity: LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA. LLC
Enctly as it is regirlered (or ialends to be regbtered) wilh the Nevada gecretary of Stare

Business Contact: g1 3) 529-5770 d rew@legacyfu n eralg rou p.com
Emil Address

Mailing Address:

Phone Number

3103 SACKETT ST
SEeel Address

HOUSTON TX 77098

unit/Apilsuib/Bldg

USA

Print Authorized Slgner Name:

Stole/Province

MICHAEL L SOPER
Full Name (fint middle last) ofthe poson with signaure authoritylor the registerel business entiry

3t2112025

t
Authorized Signer signature: 04 Kfu Date:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH SIGNER DECLARES IJNDER
PENALTY OF PERIURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATB OF
NEVADA THAT TIIE FOREGOING IS TRUE A}{D CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COUNTY, MVADA, IS VALID FOR FIVE (5) YEARS
FROM TIIE FILING DATE.

Otfice use only - v7.27.2 i



FFN #20250324LOO4L42
Expires: 03/24/2O3O

filed 03/24/2025 01:50:45 PM by MUNGUIAA
Page 1 of 1 - $25.00 - LYNN tfARIE GOYA,

- TR #247a506
COUNTY CLERK

REGISTERED BUSINESS ENTITY
Certificate of Assumed or Fict'rtious Name
OlJice of the Clark County Clerk
Lynn Marte Goya Filing Type: ffiNew I Renewal

This form is used by a registered bu;iness eniity tofle an assumed orfictitiow name under which business will be
conducted in Clark County, Nevadd A registered business entity is organized pursuant tq the laws ofNevada that
has fiIedformation documents with the Ofice of the Secretary of State; these entities are required to file an Annual
List of Oficers or its equivalent.' For purposes of this form, these include domestic and foreign-qualified
corporations, limited-liability companies, limited portnerships, limiled-liability partnerships, and limited-liability
limited partnerships.

Business Type: (select only one)

fiCorporation Slimited-LiabilityCompany flLimitedlartnership
Ef.imit"a-fiabilityLimitedPartnership EProfessionatCorporation

f,l l,imiteA-liability Partuership

E Professional Association

Assumed or Fictitious Name: Woodlawn Cemetery

Registered Business Entity: LEGACY FUNERAL HOLDINGS OF NEVADA, LLC
Emctly as it is regislqed (or intqds to be regislered) wirh the Nevada Secretary of Stare

Business Contact: gl 3) 529-5770 drew@legacyfu neralg rou p.com
EmoilAdrcsPhone Nmber

Mailing Address: 3103 SACKETT ST
Street Addrcss

HOUSTON TX 77098

Unit/Apt/Suite/Dldg

USA

Print Authorized Signer Name:

Authorized Signer Signature:

BY SIGNING ABOVE, EACH.SIGNER DECLARES UNDER
PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF TIIE STATE OF
NEVADA TTIAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. A
FILED CERTIFICATE FOR AN ASSUMED OR FICTITIOUS
NAME UNDER WHICH A BUSINESS IS BEING CONDUCTED IN
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, IS VALID FOR FrVE (5) YEARS
FROM TIIE FILING DATE.

Elale/Province

MICHAEL L SOPER
FulI Name (ftrst middle last) of the petson wirh autlwrityfor the registered business entity

natez312112025























         
   

          
 

            
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 

JOE LOMBARDO DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ 
Governor Director 

SCOTT J. KIPPER 
Commissioner 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 
DIVISION OF INSURANCE 

January 16, 2025 

Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC 
3103 Sackett St. 
Houston, TX  77098 

Dear Mr. Soper, 

The purpose of this correspondence is to notify you, per the requirements of NRS 452.590, that 
the State of Nevada, Department of Business and Industry, Division of Insurance (“Division”) 
grants its approval of the acquisition of three cemeteries (Bunker’s Eden Vale Memorial Park, 
Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn Cemetery) from Carriage Funeral Holdings by 
Legacy Funeral Holding of Nevada, LLC. 

Sincerely, 

Nick J. Stosic 
Deputy Commissioner of Insurance 

Carson City: 1818 E. College Parkway, Suite 103 Carson City, Nevada 89706 - Telephone (775) 687-0700 - Fax (775) 687-0797 

Las Vegas: 3300 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 275 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 - Telephone (702) 486-4009 - Fax (702) 486-4007 
DOI.NV.GOV 

https://DOI.NV.GOV


 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

 

  

 
 

  
 

  

  
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:36 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Hi Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 9:26:30 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 1 of 2) 

Good morning, Randy— 

In December, Legacy Funeral Holdings of Nevada, LLC, filed applications to acquire three existing cemeteries, 
Bunkers Eden Vale, Bunkers Memory Gardens, and Woodlawn.  All three cemeteries are currently owned by 
Carriage Cemetery Services, Inc.  Closing of the sale is set for Monday, February 24, 2025.  The application is 
missing the “doing business as” (DBA) certificate, and the deed, as these cannot be obtained until after 
closing. Pursuant to statute, the Division of Insurance has approved the acquisition with respect to the 
endowment care account and financial statements.  I removed the financials and the trust agreement from the 
attachments and can provide these to you if needed.  

In addition to acquiring the cemeteries, Legacy submitted applications to acquire Bunker’s Eden Vale Mortuary 
and Bunker’s Memorial Gardens Mortuary and Crematory.  Due to the size of the files, I will send these to you in a 
separate email.  These applications are complete with the exception of the DBA certificates and the local 
business licenses, which will be provided as soon as possible.  The facilities have been inspected and are 
compliant. 

Given the need for a seamless transaction to continue serving families, I am submitting these applications to you 
for temporary approval effective as of the closing of this transaction.  This will allow the entities to have a 
seamless transaction.  Should the business licenses, DBA certificates, and the deed not be provided by the May 
meeting, the Board may deny the license. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

1 

mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

2 

https://funeral.nv.gov


 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 

 
 

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 3:39 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Hey Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/25/2025 10:29:18 AM 
Subject Temporary Approval Request Legacy Acquisition of Bunkers (Email 2 of 2) 

Randy--

Hi, again.  Attached are the establishment and crematory applications, as mentioned in my earlier email. 

Will you please consider temporary approval? 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


      Verified-resides within 120 miles of facility. SBM 
02.04.2025 





	
�� 

   	 




 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
  

 
  

 
  

  
 

  

  
  

 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Monday, February 10, 2025 4:12 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Mountain View Mort-New MFD Temporary Approval Requested 

Hi Stephanie! Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/10/2025 11:46:50 AM 
Subject Mountain View Mort-New MFD Temporary Approval Requested 

Good morning, Randy— 

Mountain View Mortuary (EST3) submitted a request for approval of a new managing funeral director, Kuvira Cox 
(FD755). The application is complete, and the fees have been paid.  The proposed managing funeral director 
resides within 120 miles of the facility and does not currently serve as a managing funeral director for any other 
facility. 

Will you please consider granting temporary approval of this request?  

Thank you, in advance! 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


         Confirmed: resides within 120 miles of facility. SBM 02.14.2025 





 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

From: David Squires 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: RE: Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 
Date: Friday, February 7, 2025 11:27:03 AM 

Thank you Stephanie. 

J. David Squires, Esq. 
General Counsel & Director of 
Human Resources|Risk Management 
LA PALOMA FUNERAL SERVICES 
SIMPLE CREMATION 

Phone: 702.732.7070 
Fax: 702.435.0099 
Email: dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com 

5450 Stephanie St 
Las Vegas, NV 89122 

www.LaPalomaFuneralServices.com 
www.SimpleCremation.us 

From: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board <nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2025 11:24 AM 
To: David Squires <dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com> 
Subject: RE: Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 

Hi, David— 

It’s too late to add this to the agenda for the February 12th meeting—the agenda is typically set 3 
to 4 weeks prior to the meeting to accommodate for required approvals and notice periods. 
However, we will process the request for temporary approval by Chairman Sharp and place it on 
the agenda for the meeting in May. 

Let me know if you have any questions.  Thanks! 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
http://www.lapalomafuneralservices.com/
http://www.simplecremation.us/
mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 

Executive Director 

Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 

Reno, NV  89509 

(775)825-5535 

https://funeral.nv.gov 

From: David Squires <dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2025 10:27 AM 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board <nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov> 
Subject: Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 

Good morning – please see the attached Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director for 2 
locations (2 requests attached w/fees).  This pertains to Richard Hollingsworth, FD1034 and is for the 
two La Paloma locations in Las Vegas. 

I understand that there is a Board meeting coming up on February 12 – is it possible to get this added 
to the agenda? 

Thank you! 

- David 

https://funeral.nv.gov/
mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


 



	
�� 

	    �



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
  

 

  
 

  
 

  

  
  

 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2025 9:08 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: MFD Requests for La Paloma EST79 and EST131 

Hi Stephanie. Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/14/2025 4:09:12 PM 
Subject MFD Requests for La Paloma EST79 and EST131 

Good afternoon, Randy— 

On February 7, 2025, the two La Paloma establishments applied for approval of Richard Hollingworth (FD1034) 
as the managing funeral director effective March 1, 2025.  The applications are complete, and the fees have been 
paid. Mr. Hollingworth lives within 120 miles of each facility, and the facilities are within 120 miles of each 
other. Currently, Mr. Hollingworth does not serve as managing funeral director for any other facility (limit of 
three). 

Will you please consider these applications for temporary approval effective March 1, 2025, pending the Board’s 
consideration at the meeting in May? 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.  Thank you, in advance! 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Directorf 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535
https://funeral.nv.gov

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


        Confirmed: lives within 120 miles of facility. SBM 02.14.2025 





 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

From: David Squires 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: RE: Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 
Date: Friday, February 7, 2025 11:27:03 AM 

Thank you Stephanie. 

J. David Squires, Esq. 
General Counsel & Director of 
Human Resources|Risk Management 
LA PALOMA FUNERAL SERVICES 
SIMPLE CREMATION 

Phone: 702.732.7070 
Fax: 702.435.0099 
Email: dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com 

5450 Stephanie St 
Las Vegas, NV 89122 

www.LaPalomaFuneralServices.com 
www.SimpleCremation.us 

From: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board <nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2025 11:24 AM 
To: David Squires <dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com> 
Subject: RE: Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 

Hi, David— 

It’s too late to add this to the agenda for the February 12th meeting—the agenda is typically set 3 
to 4 weeks prior to the meeting to accommodate for required approvals and notice periods. 
However, we will process the request for temporary approval by Chairman Sharp and place it on 
the agenda for the meeting in May. 

Let me know if you have any questions.  Thanks! 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
http://www.lapalomafuneralservices.com/
http://www.simplecremation.us/
mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 

Executive Director 

Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 

Reno, NV  89509 

(775)825-5535 

https://funeral.nv.gov 

From: David Squires <dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2025 10:27 AM 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board <nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov> 
Subject: Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 

Good morning – please see the attached Req for Approval of Managing Funeral Director for 2 
locations (2 requests attached w/fees).  This pertains to Richard Hollingsworth, FD1034 and is for the 
two La Paloma locations in Las Vegas. 

I understand that there is a Board meeting coming up on February 12 – is it possible to get this added 
to the agenda? 

Thank you! 

- David 

https://funeral.nv.gov/
mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


 



	 
� �

	   � � 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
  

 

  
 

  
 

  

  
  

 
 

 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2025 9:08 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: MFD Requests for La Paloma EST79 and EST131 

Hi Stephanie. Temporary approval granted. 
Thank you! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 2/14/2025 4:09:12 PM 
Subject MFD Requests for La Paloma EST79 and EST131 

Good afternoon, Randy— 

On February 7, 2025, the two La Paloma establishments applied for approval of Richard Hollingworth (FD1034) 
as the managing funeral director effective March 1, 2025.  The applications are complete, and the fees have been 
paid. Mr. Hollingworth lives within 120 miles of each facility, and the facilities are within 120 miles of each 
other. Currently, Mr. Hollingworth does not serve as managing funeral director for any other facility (limit of 
three). 

Will you please consider these applications for temporary approval effective March 1, 2025, pending the Board’s 
consideration at the meeting in May? 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.  Thank you, in advance! 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Directorf 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535
https://funeral.nv.gov

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


Confirmed that she lives within 120 miles of facility. SBM 03.13.2025 





 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

  

 

 
  

 

 

From: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
To: Dell, Jenna 
Subject: RE: New managing director for Palm Southwest Mortuary 
Date: Thursday, March 13, 2025 12:24:01 PM 

Hi Jenna, 

Thank you for submitting this request. It will be processed as soon as possible and I will 
reach out with any questions or updates. 

Kind regards, 

Jill Gooch 
Licensing Specialist and Administrative Assistant 
Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775) 825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov/ 

From: Dell, Jenna <jenna.dell@dignitymemorial.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 13, 2025 12:11 PM 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board <nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov>; Wain, Jessica 
<Jessica.Wain@Sci-us.com>; Nichols, Aiko <Aiko.Nichols@Sci-us.com> 
Subject: New managing director for Palm Southwest Mortuary 

Jenna Dell 
Funeral Home Manager 
Licensed Funeral Director 
Nevada License FD881 

Palm Southwest Mortuary 
7979 West Warm Springs Road 
Las Vegas, NV 89113 
Office 702-260-0770 
Fax 702-260-6983 
www.PalmSouthwest.com 

From: KM5999D5@sci.scanner <KM5999D5@sci.scanner> 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
mailto:jenna.dell@dignitymemorial.com
https://funeral.nv.gov/
http://www.palmdowntownmortuary.com/
mailto:KM5999D5@sci.scanner
mailto:KM5999D5@sci.scanner
mailto:Aiko.Nichols@Sci-us.com
mailto:Jessica.Wain@Sci-us.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
mailto:jenna.dell@dignitymemorial.com


 
 

Sent: Thursday, March 13, 2025 12:59 PM 
To: Dell, Jenna <jenna.dell@dignitymemorial.com> 
Subject: Message from KM5999D5 

mailto:jenna.dell@dignitymemorial.com


 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
  

  
   

  
 

  
 

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy Sharp <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 13, 2025 9:59 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Palm SW EST105 Proposed MFD-Temp Approval Req 

Hi Stephanie. Thank you for sending this. Temporary approval granted. 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 3/13/2025 3:18:19 PM 
Subject Palm SW EST105 Proposed MFD-Temp Approval Req 

Good afternoon, Randy— 

Attached is a request submitted by Palm Southwest (EST105) to appoint Jessica Wain (FD1036) as their managing 
funeral director.  The application is complete, and all fees have been paid.  The proposed MFD lives within 120 
miles of the facility and does not currently manage any other facility (there is a 3-facility cap).  

Will you please consider granting temporary approval until the May meeting? 

Thank you! Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


Verified-lives within 120 miles of facility. SBM 04.03.2025 

1039 





 

From: David Squires 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: Req for change of Managing FD, Simple Cremation, DC 90L and DC 103L 
Date: Thursday, April 3, 2025 11:23:39 AM 
Attachments: 

Hello, 

Please see attached regarding forms/payments relating to 2 requests for Approval of Managing FD re: 
Simple Cremation DC90L and DC103L. 

Thank you, 

David 

mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


	
�� 

	    




 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Thursday, April 3, 2025 3:51 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Simple Cremation 90L and Simple Cremation 103L-New MFD 

Good afternoon Stephanie. Temporary approval is granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

------ Original Message ------
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 4/3/2025 13:07:16 
Subject Simple Cremation 90L and Simple Cremation 103L-New MFD 

Good afternoon, Randy— 

Attached, please find requests for approval of a managing funeral director for Simple Cremation DC90L and 
Simple Cremation DC103L.  These entities are asking for approval to appoint Dawn Hollingsworth (FD1039) as the 
managing funeral director. Ms. Hollingsworth was licensed earlier this week as a funeral director.  The 
applications are complete, and the fees have been paid.  Ms. Hollingsworth lives within 120 of each facility, and 
the facilities are within 120 of each other.  Currently, Ms. Hollingsworth does not manage any facilities.  

Will you please consider granting temporary approval of these requests pending the Board meeting on May 14, 
during which the full board can consider the requests? 

Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you, in advance! 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


1039 

Verified-lives within 120 miles of facility. SBM 04.03.2025 





 

 
 

 

 

 

From: David Squires 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: Req for change of Managing FD, Simple Cremation, DC 90L and DC 103L 
Date: Thursday, April 3, 2025 11:23:39 AM 
Attachments: 

Hello, 

Please see attached regarding forms/payments relating to 2 requests for Approval of Managing FD re: 
Simple Cremation DC90L and DC103L. 

Thank you, 

David 

mailto:dsquires@lapalomafuneralservices.com
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


	
�� 

	    
 




 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Thursday, April 3, 2025 3:51 PM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Simple Cremation 90L and Simple Cremation 103L-New MFD 

Good afternoon Stephanie. Temporary approval is granted. Thank you! 

Randy 

------ Original Message ------
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 4/3/2025 13:07:16 
Subject Simple Cremation 90L and Simple Cremation 103L-New MFD 

Good afternoon, Randy— 

Attached, please find requests for approval of a managing funeral director for Simple Cremation DC90L and 
Simple Cremation DC103L.  These entities are asking for approval to appoint Dawn Hollingsworth (FD1039) as the 
managing funeral director. Ms. Hollingsworth was licensed earlier this week as a funeral director.  The 
applications are complete, and the fees have been paid.  Ms. Hollingsworth lives within 120 of each facility, and 
the facilities are within 120 of each other.  Currently, Ms. Hollingsworth does not manage any facilities.  

Will you please consider granting temporary approval of these requests pending the Board meeting on May 14, 
during which the full board can consider the requests? 

Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you, in advance! 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov 

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


 

  

975 

STATE OF NEVADA 

FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada 89509 
Phone (775} 825-5535 • Fax (775} 507-4102 

Email: nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov • Website: http://funeral.nv.gov/ 

Request for Approval of Managing Funeral Director 

I lnfonnatlon 

Any funeral establishment or direct cremation facility wishing to request approval of a new managing funeral director or 
transfer a managing funeral director from one location to another must complete this form and submit payment of $225. 

Required Documents 
Completed Request Form: Request forms are required to be completed in full. 

Fee: A non-refundable payment in the amount of $225 must be submitted at time of request. Acceptable forms 
of payment include, check, money order or credit card and made payable to the "Nevada Funeral and Cemetery 
Services Board.· 

Establishment Location lnfonnatlon 
Name of Location: Permit#: 

Sonoma Funeral Home 116 
Physical address: 

47 W. 1st Street 
City: State: Zip Code: 

Winnemucca NV 89445 
Phone Number: E-mail Address:e

775.623.2986 janusadvisor@gmail.com 

Preferred Mallin Addreea 
Mailing Address: (All Board correspondence will be sent to this address.) 

30 Constitution Drive, Suite 100 
City: State: 

Chico CA 
Zip Code: 

95973 

Pro sed New Mana In 
Name: 

Funeral Director lnfonnatlon 
License# Proposed Start Data: 

Kailynn Yetter 04/02/2025 
Physical Home Address: 

Verified that she lives within 120 miles of facility. SBM 4.28.2025e

City: State: Zip Code: 

Winnemucca NV 89445 
Phone Number: E-mail Address:e

Does the proposed new managing Funeral Director reside within 120 miles of the 0 □ NoYese
location? 

If proposed new managing Funeral Director manages more than one □ N/Ae Yes No 
location, are each of the locations within 120 miles of each other? 

mailto:janusadvisor@gmail.com
http://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


225 
7510 



	
��  �� �
 
   
 �  	
� 
 
 �  �
  
     
  �    �
  
 
 � � 	  
 
 
 �  
� 	� 
 
 
 
  �    ��    
 
  �  	
  
      � 
 �   �  
 
 �      �	
  
   
�   

 � 
 
 
 
   
� � 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 �	
�  
 
 
  �	
�
 	
� � 	
�  	
� � � 	
�
 �  
 � 
 
  
  
   � 
 
  � 
  	
     
   
�	
     �  �
 
 
 
   	
  
     � 
   
  �   	      � 
  �  
 
 �	
   �
  
 
�  
 
 � � 
 �   � � 	
    
 � 
 
       
	
 �  � 
   
   �
  �  � �  
 
�	
 � � 
 
 
  
 
  
 
  	
� 
  � �	
�  
�
 �
�  
  
 �
� �  ��      	 
         
� 
�  � � 
  � 	    


 �  

	 �  	   ��  
  
 
 �  �  �
�  
 � �� 

�  	
� �	


 �   � � 
�



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
  

 
 

  

  
  

 
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Stephanie McGee 

From: Randy S <randy@cccarson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2025 8:32 AM 
To: Stephanie McGee 
Subject: Re: Sonoma EST116 Req for MFD Approval 

Good morning Stephanie. Temporary approval is granted. 

Have a great Tuesday! 

Randy 

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse typos and brevity. 

------ Original Message ------ 
From "Stephanie McGee" <director@fb.nv.gov> 
To "Randy Sharp" <randy@cccarson.com> 
Date 4/28/2025 10:42:25 AM 
Subject Sonoma EST116 Req for MFD Approval 

Good morning, Randy— 

Today, I received an application from Sonoma Funeral Home requesting approval for Kailynn Yetter to serve as 
managing funeral director effective April 2, 2025. The application is complete, and the fees have been paid. I 
called the facility this morning to ask about the retroactive effective date.  The previous managing funeral director, 
Marlene Shier, passed away on April 1, 2025.  Therefore, the facility is requesting approval effective April 2.  Ms. 
Yetter lives within 120 miles of the funeral home and does not currently manage any other facilities. 

Will you please consider granting temporary approval for Kailynn Yetter to serve as the managing funeral director 
for Sonoma Funeral Home effective April 2, 2025? 

Thank you, in advance.  Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Stephanie 

Stephanie Bryant McGee 
Executive Director 
Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775)825-5535
https://funeral.nv.gov

1 

https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com
mailto:director@fb.nv.gov
mailto:randy@cccarson.com


     
         

 

 

                
      

    
    

     
   

     
   

 

 
 

               
       
       

 

 
                

       
 

                
                   

 
                               
                                 

 
 

                                 
                         

 
                             
                          

 
               

 

 
             

          
   
 

       
 

          
   

 
 

                             
                           

           
 

                       
 

                        
 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada 89509 
STATE OF NEVADA Phone (775) 825‐5535 

Email: nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 
Website: funeral.nv.gov 

DR. RANDY SHARP STEPHANIE BRYANT MCGEE 
Board Chair Executive Director 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION 
LCB File Number R142‐23 

NOTICE OF HEARING FOR THE ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT 
OF REGULATIONS OF THE NEVADA FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

The Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board will hold a public hearing at 9:00 a.m., on 
May 14, 2025, at the Nevada Funeral & Cemetery Services Board meeting to be held in Reno, 
Nevada. 

For those wishing to attend in person, the physical location of the hearing is the Nevada Funeral 
and Cemetery Services Board Office, 3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada 89509. 

For those wishing to attend virtually by computer, mobile app, or telephone, the Hearing will 
also be held virtually via Zoom. The link to the Zoom Meeting is: 

To join on your computer or mobile app: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/2539775871?pwd=R1NSVGtucG5rd29NMG5zblVhSmEwdz09&omn=836267 

63316 

To join by Meeting ID through Zoom: 
Meeting ID: 253 977 5871 

Passcode: 668556 

To join by telephone: 
669‐900‐6833 

Meeting ID: 253 977 5871 
Passcode: 668556 

The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments from all interested persons regarding the 
adoption, amendment, and repeal of regulations that pertain to chapter 451 of the Nevada 
Administrative Code, LCB File No. R142‐23. 

The following information is provided pursuant to the requirements of NRS 233B.0603: 

1. A statement of the need for and purpose of the proposed regulation. 

Notice of Intent to Act upon a Regulation 
LCB File No. 142.23 
Page 1 of 4 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/2539775871?pwd=R1NSVGtucG5rd29NMG5zblVhSmEwdz09&omn=836267
https://funeral.nv.gov
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


               
       
       

 

                          
                             

                        
                             

                       
                         

 
                           
                     

 
                            

                   
 
                       

 
                              

                             
 

          
 

   
 

                           
       

 
   

 

                         

                       

                        

                         

           

 

          
 

   
 

                           

 
   

 

                           

   

On January 12, 2023, Nevada Governor Joe Lombardo issued Executive Order 2023‐003. Section 
1 of that Executive Order requires the Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board (Board) to 
conduct a comprehensive review of the regulations subject to the Board’s enforcement. 
Pursuant to that Executive Order, the Board was to identify any regulations that can be 
streamlined, clarified, reduced, or otherwise improved to ensure those regulations provide for 
the general welfare of the State of Nevada without unnecessarily inhibiting economic growth. 

An additional proposed amendment is offered as guidance for compliance with NRS Chapter 451 
as amended by Assembly Bill 289 (2023) regarding natural organic reduction. 

2. Either the terms or the substance of the regulations to be adopted, amended or 
repealed, or a description of the subjects and issues involved. 

A copy of the proposed regulation amendment is attached to this notice. 

3. The estimated economic effect of the regulation on the business which it is to regulate 
and on the public. These must be stated separately and, in each case, must include: 

(a) Both adverse and beneficial effects 

Adverse effects 

The Board does not anticipate any adverse economic impact from this regulation on businesses 
or the public. 

Beneficial effects 

The Board anticipates the beneficial effect to the public would be the adoption, 
amendment, or repeal of any regulations that need clarification, improvement, or unnecessarily 
inhibit economic growth. The beneficial effects are that the proposed regulations are 
reasonably necessary and expedient for the orderly conduct of the Board’s administration of 
NRS 642 and NRS 451. 

(b) Both immediate and long‐term effects 

Immediate effects 

The Board does not anticipate any immediate economic effect on businesses or the public. 

Long‐term effects 

The Board does not anticipate any long‐term economic effect on businesses or the public. 

Notice of Intent to Act upon a Regulation 
LCB File No. 142.23 
Page 2 of 4 



               
       
       

 

                            
 

                              
                             
                                

                                
                

 
                        

 
                               

                           
 

 
                            

                     
                       

                           
     

 
                               
           

 
                              

   
 

               
 

                          
                   

 
                           
                         

 
                          

 
                        

 
                           
                             

                           
                           
                          
                                    

4. The methods used by the agency in determining the impact on a small business. 

The Board discussed the regulatory changes at a workshop on November 15, 2023. There were 
no public comments regarding any opposition to any of the changes or any concerns regarding 
any economic impact on small business. In addition, the Board sent an email to each business 
holding a license issued by the Board requesting a response to a small business impact survey. 
The Board received no response to the survey. 

5. The estimated cost to the agency for enforcement of the proposed regulation. 

Enforcement of the regulation will be performed by the Board in the normal conduct of its 
affairs. There should not be any additional costs associated with enforcement of the proposed 
regulation. 

6. A description of and citation to any regulations of other state or local governmental 
agencies which the proposed regulation overlaps or duplicates and a statement 
explaining why the duplication or overlapping is necessary. If the proposed regulation 
overlaps or duplicates a federal regulation, the notice must include the name of the 
regulating federal agency. 

The Board is not aware of any similar regulations of other state or government agencies that 
the proposed regulations overlap or duplicate. 

7. If the regulation is required pursuant to federal law, a citation and description of the 
federal law. 

This regulation is not required by federal law. 

8. If the regulation includes provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation 
that regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions. 

The proposed regulations do not include any provisions that duplicate or are more stringent 
than any federal, state, or local regulations or standards regulating the same activity. 

9. Whether the proposed regulation establishes a new fee or increases an existing fee. 

The proposed regulation does not provide for any new or increased fees. 

Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed action of the Nevada Funeral and Cemetery 
Services Board may appear at the scheduled Public Hearing in person or via the Zoom 
videoconference or may address their comments, data, views, or opinions, in written form, to 
the Funeral and Cemetery Services Board, 3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada 89509, 
or via email to nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov. Written submissions must be received by the Board 
by May 1, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. If no person who is directly affected by the proposed action 

Notice of Intent to Act upon a Regulation 
LCB File No. 142.23 
Page 3 of 4 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


               
       
       

 

                             
         

 
                                 

                               
                              

                             
                           

                              
                             

                       
                             

                        
 

                               
                             

                           
           

 
                     

 

                          

            

        

            

                                   

                            

                             

   

 

appears to request time to make an oral presentation, the Board may proceed immediately to 
act upon any written submissions. 

A copy of this notice and the text of the proposed regulation to be adopted, amended, and 
repealed will be on file at the State Library, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, Nevada, for 
inspection by members of the public during business hours. Additional copies of the notice and 
the regulation to be adopted will be available at the Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services 
Board Office at 3740 E. Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada, and https://funeral.nv.gov for 
inspection and copying by members of the public during business hours. This notice and the 
text of the proposed regulation are also available in the State of Nevada Register of 
Administrative Regulations, which is prepared and published monthly by the Legislative Counsel 
Bureau pursuant to NRS 233B.0653. Copies of this notice and the proposed regulation will also 
be mailed to members of the public at no charge upon request. 

Upon adoption of any regulation, the agency, if requested to do so by an interested person, 
either before adoption or within 30 days thereafter, will issue a concise statement of the 
principal reasons for and against its adoption and incorporate therein its reason for overruling 
the consideration urged against its adoption. 

This notice of hearing has been posted at the following locations: 

 The Board’s Office at 3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 in Reno, Nevada. 
 The Nevada Public Notice website: https://notice.nv.gov/ 
 The Board’s website: https://funeral.nv.gov/ 
 The Nevada Legislature notice website: https://www.leg.state.nv.us/register/ 

Notice has also been sent via email or physical mail, as requested, to all licensees of the Board 
and persons on the agency’s mailing list for administrative regulations. Notices were also sent 
via email for posting by the Nevada State Library and Archives and the Nevada Legislative 
Counsel Bureau. 

Notice of Intent to Act upon a Regulation 
LCB File No. 142.23 
Page 4 of 4 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/register
https://funeral.nv.gov
https://notice.nv.gov
https://funeral.nv.gov


 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE NEVADA FUNERAL 

AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

LCB File No. R142-23 

January 29, 2024 

EXPLANATION – Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted. 

AUTHORITY: §§ 1-3, NRS 451.640, as amended by section 5 of Assembly Bill No. 289, 
chapter 85, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 417, and NRS 642.063. 

A REGULATION relating to cremation; revising the interpretation of certain phrases relating to 
cremation; clarifying requirements relating to the maintenance of certain records; and 
providing other matters properly relating thereto. 

Legislative Counsel’s Digest: 
Existing law prohibits the use of space within a crematory where cremation takes place 

for any purpose other than the cremation of human remains. (NRS 451.680, as amended by 
section 7 of Assembly Bill No. 289, chapter 85, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 418) Existing 
law requires the licensed operator of a crematory to ensure that all persons physically operating 
the crematory equipment have completed an approved crematory certification program. (NRS 
451.635, as amended by section 4 of Assembly Bill No. 289, chapter 85, Statutes of Nevada 
2023, at page 416) Assembly Bill No. 205 of the 2017 Legislative Session and Assembly Bill 
No. 289 of the 2023 Legislative Session: (1) authorized the use of alkaline hydrolysis and natural 
organic reduction, respectively, for the disposition of human remains; and (2) revised the 
definition of “cremation” to include alkaline hydrolysis and natural organic reduction, 
respectively. (Chapter 406, Statutes of Nevada 2017, at page 2734, chapter 85, Statutes of 
Nevada 2023, at page 415) Sections 1 and 2 of this regulation make conforming changes to 
incorporate terms used in reference to alkaline hydrolysis and natural organic reduction in 
existing sections of the Nevada Administrative Code interpreting the terms “cremation of human 
remains” and “physically operating the crematory equipment.” 

Existing law requires an operator of a crematory, funeral establishment or direct 
cremation facility to keep certain records. (NRS 451.665) Existing regulations require that such 
records be maintained for at least 7 years. (NAC 451.200) Section 3 of this regulation clarifies 
that such records must be maintained for at least 7 years after the date of the final disposition of 
the human remains to which the records pertain. 

Section 1. NAC 451.008 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

--1-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R142-23 



 

   

   

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

  

     

    

 

  

  

451.008 1. For the purposes of NRS 451.680, as amended by section 7 of Assembly Bill 

No. 289, chapter 85, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 418, the Nevada Funeral and Cemetery 

Services Board interprets the phrase “cremation of human remains” to include: 

(a) The container, unless incinerating , dissolving or reducing the container is prohibited 

pursuant to [subsection 3 of] NRS 451.670 [;] , as amended by section 6 of Assembly Bill No. 

289, chapter 85, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 417; 

(b) The personal effects of the deceased person; and  

(c) A negligible amount of chlorinated plastic which may be attached to or accompanying the 

human remains. 

2. As used in this section:  

(a) “Container” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 451.615; and 

(b) “Human remains” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 451.620. 

Sec. 2. NAC 451.009 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

451.009 For the purposes of NRS 451.635, as amended by section 4 of Assembly Bill No. 

289, chapter 85, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 416, the Nevada Funeral and Cemetery 

Services Board interprets the phrase “physically operating the crematory equipment” to mean: 

1. Starting the crematory equipment; 

2. Loading the chamber [;] or equipment for natural organic reduction; 

3. Sweeping the chamber [;] or removing human remains from the equipment for natural 

organic reduction; and 

4. Processing human remains, including the initial placement of the human remains into 

temporary urns. 

Sec. 3. NAC 451.200 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

--2-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R142-23 



 

   

   

 

 

   

451.200 1. The records required to be kept pursuant to NRS 451.665 by the operator of a 

crematory, funeral establishment or direct cremation facility must be maintained for at least 7 

years [.] after the date of the final disposition of the human remains to which the records 

pertain. 

2. The maintenance of such records in a digital format satisfies the requirements of 

subsection 1. 

--3-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R142-23 







































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
To: Casey Stockwell 
Subject: RE: Casey McGary application for funeral license 
Date: Friday, March 21, 2025 7:49:04 AM 

Hi Casey, 

Thank you for submitting your application. It will be processed soon and I will reach out with 
any questions or updates. 

Kind regards, 

Jill Gooch 
Licensing Specialist and Administrative Assistant 
Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 
Reno, NV  89509 
(775) 825-5535 
https://funeral.nv.gov/ 

From: Casey Stockwell <caseystockwell@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 6:59 PM 
To: Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board <nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov> 
Subject: Casey McGary application for funeral license 

Hello, attached is my application for the funeral application. Please reach out if any 
additional information is needed. Thank you! 

Casey McGary 
775-400-7294 

Yahoo Mail - Email 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
mailto:caseystockwell@yahoo.com
https://funeral.nv.gov/
https://mail.onelink.me/107872968?pid=nativeplacement&c=US_Acquisition_YMktg_315_EmailSimplified_EmailSignature&af_sub1=Acquisition&af_sub2=US_YMktg&af_sub3=&af_sub4=100002040&af_sub5=T01_Email_Static_&af_ios_store_cpp=80931d61-93be-4737-af43-90b13f374168&af_android_url=https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.yahoo.mobile.client.android.mail&listing=email_simplified
mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov
mailto:caseystockwell@yahoo.com


	 
� �

	   � � 

















10th April 

































































 

 

 
 
 

 

Stephanie McGee 

From: chris grant <chris.grant@mcdermottfuneralservice.com> 
Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2025 6:22 AM 
To: Stephanie McGee; Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Subject: McDermott’s Attending Meeting on 5/14/25 

This email is to let you know that I will not be able to attend the Meeting scheduled for May 14, 2025 as I 
will be in Elko that entire week with my family. My son is scheduled to be competing in the Nevada State 
High School Golf Championship at Ruby View Golf Course. He still has to qualify, but he is ranked #1 in 
his Division, currently, and tied 4th in the State last year. I have informed Executive Director Stephanie 
McGee that, should he not make it, I will notify her. I should know, for certain, in the coming couple of 
weeks. However, I am hopeful he will make it and have already booked the travel in advance. I am 
requesting a continuance of the hearing of FB24-06 to the next Meeting after this one in hopes that I will 
be able to attend and properly defend myself and answer to this situation.  

Thank you. 

Chris Grant 
Owner/Operator/Managing Funeral Director 
McDermott's Funeral & Cremation Service 
Phone: (702) 431-6161 Fax: (702) 522-8591 Cell: (702) 712-2380 
chris.grant@mcdermottfuneralservice 
For Urns and/or Cremation Jewelry, go to our Online Store HERE! 

1 

mailto:chris.grant@mcdermottfuneralservice
mailto:chris.grant@mcdermottfuneralservice.com


Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board 
Proposed Line Item Operating Budget 

FY26 (July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026) 

Revenue 

Licensing and Service Fees

 Reissue License Req. (Nm Chg, Duplicate Lic) 300
 Approval of Managing Funeral Director 4,300
 Examination Authorization Requests 4,000
 Initial Licensing Application 28,000
 Inactivation/Reactivation of Lic 700
 Reinstatment of Lapsed License 300
 Facility Location Change Request 450 

Total Licensing and Service Fees 38,050 

Renewal Fees

 Cemetery Renewals 1,800
 Crematory Renewals 2,700
 Embalmer Renewals 9,100
 Establishment Permit Renewals 6,700
 Funeral Arranger Renewals 18,500
 Funeral Director Renewals 18,400
 Late Renewal Fees 300 

Total Renewal Fees 57,500 

Regulatory Fees 290,380 

Other Revenue

 Administrative Fines 0
 Legal Fees 500
 Miscellaneous Admin Service Fees 0
 Interest Income 40 

Total Revenue 386,470 

Expenses

 Payroll Expenses

 Executive Director Salary 113,850
 Administrative Asst. Wages 51,647
 Inspector/Investigator Wages 35,501
 Health Insurance 23,000
 Employer Taxes 16,000
 Retirement 29,145

 Total Payroll Expenses 269,142

 Contractual Services 



 Bookkeeping 9,840
 Audit 11,500
 The Conference Dues and Test Development 250

 Janitorial Services 3,500
 Total Contractual Services 25,090 

Other Expenses

 Administrative Fines to Treasurer 0
 Attorney General - Legal Fees 15,000
 Background Checks 1,400
 Bank fees 5,401
 Board Member Compensation 4,200
 Conference/Training Registration 1,500
 Equipment and Furnishings 1,200
 Insurance 5,000
 Licensing Database Software 0
 Meeting Expenses 1,500
 Office Lease 21,030
 Office Supplies 1,100
 Postage/Postage Meter Lease 1,500
 Printing and Copying/Copier Lease 2,500
 Repair and Maintenance 500
 Software 4,400
 Technical Support Web Site 1,510
 Telephone/Internet 3,700 

Travel

 Travel-In State 8,900
 Travel-Out of State 3,600 

Utilities

 Electricity/Gas 1,550
 Alarm System 600 

Total Expenses 380,323 

Total Anticipated Revenue 386,470 
Total Proposed Expenses 380,323 
Difference 6,147 



State of Nevada 
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 Reno, NV 89509 
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Proposed Cost-of-Living (COLA) 

 

 

 
 

   
 

   
 

    
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

     
       

Proposed COLA: 2.5% 

The Board may approve a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) to base salaries.  The proposed COLA of 
2.5% is based on the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers as of March 2025 (based on 12-
month period), which increased by 2.4% and the Social Security COLA of 2.5% for 2025. 

Anticipated expense: $6,154 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


	
 �� 
 	 



	
 �� 
 	 



	
 �� 
 	 �   
    

             



	
 �� 
 	 �
   





�� �:B:*++,-./�0.121�3456.78�3.7�98�:;:9�<;=;:�*3�>3?@;A=;; 

mailto:�0.121�3456.78�3.7�98�:;:9�<;=;:�*3�>3?@;A


State of Nevada 

FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 
3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201 Reno, NV 89509 

Phone (775) 825-5535 * Email: nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov 

Executive Director Report – May 7, 2025 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Executive Summary 

For the past three months, I have been monitoring several bills moving through the legislature.  Some of the bills impact 
the funeral industry and others impact administration of the office. The most impactful bills are described in the legislation 
section below. Licensing numbers continue to grow, and details are included below. The office continues to work to 
ensure that all paper records in the office are converted to electronic files. With respect to complaints, I am working with 
the Attorney General’s Office and our investigator, Dr. Fazzino, to investigate and resolve open complaints in a timely 
manner.  All licenses expire on December 31, 2025, and the office is preparing for renewals to open on November 1, 
2025. Dr. Fazzino continues to conduct the unannounced inspections required for facility renewals.  

The following sections provide more information and data regarding the activities in the past three months:  

Licensing 

Licensees: As of May 7, 2025, the Boards total number of licensees are: 

Individuals 
Funeral Arrangers 187 
Funeral Directors 184 
Embalmers 90 (41 Reciprocal) 
Apprentice Embalmers 4 
Total  465 

Facilities 
Funeral Establishments 67 
Direct Cremation Facilities 19 
Crematories 27 
Cemeteries 18 
Total 131 

Applications: Since February 10, 2025, the office has received 25 applications and requests, as follows:  

License Type # of Applications 
Embalmer  2 
Apprentice Embalmer 1 
Funeral Director 6 
Funeral Arranger 12 
Funeral Establishment  0 
Direct Cremation Facility 0 
Crematory 0 
Cemetery 0 
Managing Funeral Director Change 4 
TOTAL 25 

Executive Director Application Approvals: Since the last meeting, I approved the following individual licenses:  

Embalmers 

mailto:nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov


 

  
   

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

EMB915 Shade, Scott 

 Funeral Directors 
FD1037 Gallegos, Sara 
FD1038 Henderson, Karla 
FD1039  Hollingsworth, Dawn 
FD1035 Howie, Tristan 
FD1040 Schwerdtfeger, Steven 
FD1041 Tolli, Hannah 
FD1036 Wain, Jessica 

Funeral Arrangers 
FA369 Caldera, Denis 
FA376 Deweese, Terry 
FA373 Gomez, Gizelle 
FA374 Gonzalez Guerrero, Angelica 
FA371 Guajardo, Mia 
FA378 Karl, Brian 
FA379 Loreto, Phoebe 
FA370 Martinez-Ramos, Sergio 
FA380 Navetta, Angela 
FA375 Schwerdtfeger, Heidi 
FA372 Thomas, Marquan 
FA377 Tipton, William 
FA381 Valenica, Cindy 

Complaints 

Since the last meeting, the office has opened 8 complaint files and closed 7.  There are 27 complaints currently open with 
the following status types: 

Status Type Number 
Pending Compliance with Order/Consent Decree 3 
Pending Board Action 4 
Pending DAG Recommendation and/or Formal Complaint 6 
Pending Investigation/Review 14 
Total 27 

Required Reports 

The Quarterly Report of Occupational Licensing Boards was uploaded to the Legislative Counsel Bureau on April 10, 
2025. Pursuant to NRS 622.100, this Board is required to report licensing totals, disciplinary actions, license denials, and 
license disqualifications based on criminal history.  The report is available at: Nevada Legislative Counsel Bureau Reports 
of Occupational Licensing Boards (state.nv.us). 

Conferences/Meetings/Education  

Jeff Long and I attended the International Conference of Funeral Service Examiners annual meeting in February.  Jeff 
also attended the board member training.  

Public Record Requests/Media Contacts 

The office received one public records request since the last meeting.  There were no media requests. 

Transition to Business & Industry Pursuant to NRS 232.8415 (AB431 2023) 

Assembly Bill 431 (2023) has been codified in the statutes at NRS 232.8415.  As you may recall, this law created the 
Office of Nevada Boards, Commissions, and Councils Standards (BCCS) and tasked the Office with centralized 
administration, establishing a uniform set of standards for investigations, licensing, discipline, internal controls, legal 
representation, board structure, transparency, consumer protection, efficacy and efficiency.   

https://state.nv.us


 

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
 

 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

In the past quarter, BCCS requested financial data from all licensing and occupational boards to be submitted on a form 
created by that office.  The Funeral Board’s financial information was provided to BCCS on April 3, 2025. In addition, 
BCCS issued a new letterhead for board and commission use effective March 3, 2025. (Attached) 

Legislation 

The following bills are being considered by the Legislature and are relevant to the funeral industry: 

 Assembly Bill 266 (AB266) provides for a place of public accommodation from engaging in certain discrimination 
against a person who is breastfeeding.  A place of public accommodation includes a “funeral parlor.” 

 AB350 relates to cemetery maintenance and disinterments. The bill would require a court order to disinter a body 
and provides for certain exemptions, including at the request of a coroner, a person holding a permit to disinter 
pursuant to NRS 451.045, and the legal next of kin pursuant to NRS 451.024.  The bill sets forth standards for 
cemetery maintenance, which were previously undefined in statute and left to the county commissioners to 
develop. 

 Senate Bill 78 (SB78). This legislation is currently in skeleton form and outlines the proposed consolidation and 
elimination of State boards. The bill addresses term limits and board composition.  The bill provides for provision 
of legal services, accounting, IT, lobbying, and provision of hearing officers for contested cases, and provides for 
the costs of these services to be collected from the boards. As mentioned in previous meetings, B&I is proposing 
that the Funeral Board remain a stand-alone board. B&I has proposed an amendment to SB78 to address the 
concerns of certain boards. 

 SB340 provides for legislative and judicial review of administrative regulations if the regulation exceeds the 
statutory authority, does not carry out the intent of the legislature in granting authority to adopt a regulation, or is 
not being administered in a manner consistent with the agency’s stated intent. 

 SB349 provides for a procurement organization to transport the body or part of a deceased donor if medical 
equipment is needed to ensure suitability of the body.  

In February, the Department of Public Safety (DPS) notified me that the Federal Bureau of Investigation has approved the 
language in NRS 642.511 for the Board’s access to criminal history of applicants. I am completing the procedures, forms, 
documentation and training to implement the fingerprinting process.  Currently, DPS is rolling out a new cloud-based web 
portal to allow agencies to have electronic access to criminal history background reports.    

Gratitude 

I am grateful for each of you for your dedication to the Board.  Your role is essential to the regulation of the funeral 
industry in Nevada, and you each bring experience and perspective that ensures fair and balanced decisions. Thank you 
for your service.   



 

         
   

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF NEVADA 
JOE LOMBARDO DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ 

Governor Director 

PERRY FAIGIN 
NIKKI HAAG 

MARCEL F. SCHAERER 
Deputy Directors 

STEPHANIE BRYANT MCGEE 
Executive Director 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNCILS STANDARDS 

NEVADA FUNERAL & CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD 

Reno:  3740 Lakeside Drive, Suite 201, Reno, Nevada 89509 - Telephone (775) 825-5535 - Fax (775) 507-4102 

www.funeral.nv.gov 

www.funeral.nv.gov

	Agenda
	3A Draft Mtg Minutes 2.12.2025
	3B1 Bunkers Eden Vale EST APP
	3B2 Bunkers Mem Grds EST APP
	3B3 Bunkers Mem Grds CRE APP
	3B4 Bunkers Eden Vale CEM APP
	3B5 Bunkers Mem Grds CEM APP
	3B6 Woodlawn CEM APP
	3B7 Mountain View EST3 MFD Rqst
	3B8 La Paloma EST79 MFD Rqst
	3B9 La Paloma EST131 MFD Rqst
	3B10 Palm Southwest EST105 MFD Rqst
	3B11 Simple Crem DC90L MFD Rqst
	3B12 Simple Crem DC103L MFD Rqst
	3B13 Sonoma Funeral EST116 MFD Rqst
	4 and 5 Notice of Intent to Act on a Regulation
	6 McGary_Casey FA APP
	7 FB24-05 King David/Poster Proposed Consent Decree
	8 FB23-28 Poston Proposed Consent Decree
	9 FB23-25 Andres Family Complaint and Notice of Hearing
	10 FB24-06 McDermotts/Grant Complaint and Notice of Hearing
	10 FB24-06 Req for Continuance
	11 Proposed FY26 Proposed Budget
	12 Proposed COLA FY26.pdf
	13 Financial Statements
	14 Executive Director Report
	Blank Page



